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SENATOR STAVI SKY: | f everybody coul d take
their seat.

Thank you.

Good afternoon, and 1'd like to wel conme you
to the Senate Standing Conm ttee on Hi gher Education
heari ng being held on the canpus of the State
Uni versity of New York at Buffalo.

For the record, today is Cctober 30, 2019,
and the tinme is 1:20 p. m

First, let ne thank Senator Kennedy for
co-sponsoring this event, and for the help fromhis
staff, Mke Greco and McKayl a Ml hern.

M ke Swanson from the Senate Finance
Committee is here.

And I'd also like to thank Senate
nmedi a services for their help, and
Assenbl ynmenber Karen McMahon.

Bef ore they speak, let nme just add a couple
of things.

W al so want to thank SUNY Buffal o President
Satish Tripathi for hosting this hearing, and for
the help of his staff.

The purpose of the hearing today is to
exam ne the cost of public higher education and its

ef fect on student financial prograns, as well as
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State support, TAP gap, student borrow ng, and ot her
chal l enges to accessibility and affordability.

And one aspect of the affordability issue are
t he opportunity prograns.

W woul d not have HEOP or SEEK if it were not
for Assenbl ynenber Arthur Eve.

And | really want to acknow edge his | egacy,
and the effect that his opportunity prograns/these
opportunity prograns have on the students of the
state of New York.

And we certainly have to acknow edge that.

| look forward to hearing the testinony from
peopl e who are going to speak, but | ask that you
adhere to the 5-minute tinme limt.

There's a clock over there to ny right.

And before we begin with the first panel, |et
me i ntroduce Senator Kennedy.

SENATOR KENNEDY: Thank you very much.

First of all, let ne start by thanking the
great Chair of the Hi gher Education Conmttee,

Toby Ann Stavi sky, who has just been a trenendous
chanpi on of hi gher education in every single way
i mgi nabl e over the years, before | was in the
Senate, and since |'ve been in the Senate.

Her | eadership is just incredible to watch.
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And the fact that we are here today is
i ndi cative of that |eadership.

Wen we first started di scussing ways to
engage the State on robust, thoughtful, and
t hor ough hi gher - educati on conversations, she nade
a commtnment at that point in tinme not to do
t hese neetings without comng to Buffal o and
West ern New Yor k.

And we | ove getting the attention out here in
Western New York that oftentimes, historically, we
haven't gotten in nmany different ways.

And Senat or Toby Ann Stavisky has nmade a
comm tment, and has made good on that conmtnent.

So we thank you so mruch

Assenbl ywoman Karen McMahon, it's al ways
great to be here in her district as well.

And, of course, our Mjority Leader,

Andrea Stewart-Cousins, who has really nade these
nmeetings, not just with higher ed, but all of the
ot her various conmittees that we serve on, and
engaging in the public from-- in a public-hearing
per spective, and roundtabl e discussions, a priority
of our conference, and we've done so in an

unpr ecedent ed fashi on.

So, in many different ways, this neeting here
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today is just that, unprecedented.

So | also want to thank the University of
Buffalo for hosting us here at the Center for
Tormorrow, Dr. Satish Tripathi, his team the
adm ni strators, the teachers; all of those that work
so hard to provide this world-class education here.

We | ook forward to |istening and hearing and
incorporating all of the stakeholders' information
today into the decisions that we are going to be
maki ng out of Al bany.

At the sane time, nost inportantly, we want
to hear fromthe students, and how these deci sions
are having an inpact on their daily lives and on
their own respective educati ons.

So, we're looking forward to hearing from
each and every one of you, and thank you for your
attendance, your attention, and your participation.

SENATOR STAVI SKY:  Thank you.

And this, incidentally, is the third in a
series.

We did the first one at Brooklyn Coll ege | ast
Thur sday.

Monday | was at SUNY New Paltz.

Today is Buffalo.

Tonmorrow we' re doi ng one in Syracuse.
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And Friday at Nassau Community Col | ege out on
t he i sl and.

So, statew de.

And | think this is the first tinme we have
ever done, in ny recollection, a series where it is
al nost -- it's comunity-based rather than
| egi sl ati ve-based.

And |I'm delighted to introduce ny coll eague,
your hometown hero, | guess, she's done such an
effective job in Al bany, Karen MMahon.

ASSEMBLYMEMBER McMAHON:  Thank you,

Senat or Stavi sky, and thank you Senator Kennedy, for
organi zing this hearing today.

|"mso pleased to be here.

I'man alumof this fine institution, it's
near and dear to ny heart.

And as Senator Stavisky said, this is ny
district as well.

And | happen to be the only
Western New Yorker on the Assenbly Hi gher Ed
Commttee too, so | feel a particular responsibility
to be here today.

|"mconmitted to public education, and in
parti cul ar, higher ed.

| look forward to the testinony today.
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| thank you all for being here, and | | ook
forward to hearing about ways that we can make
hi gher education nore accessible to all New Yorkers.
So thank you for participating, | |ook
forward to your testinony.
SENATOR STAVI SKY: The first panel wll
consist of Dr. Beth -- | lost ny place --
Del Genio, the chief of staff to the president of

UB.

Then we have, Lee Melvin, vice president for
enrollment -- | lost ny place -- enroll nent
managenent, University at Buffalo -- University at
Buf f al o;

Cheryl Taplin, senior associate vice provost
for student success and retention.

And first we will have Dr. Dan Hocoy,
president, Erie County Community Coll ege.

DR DAN HOCOY: Good afternoon.

| "' m Dan Hocoy, president of SUNY Erie
Communi ty Col | ege.

And |' m honored you' re having the nost
i mportant person in the roomstart these
pr oceedi ngs.

[ Laught er. ]
DR. DAN HOCOY: 1'd like to begin by thanking
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Chai rwonman St avi sky, Senator Kennedy, and

Assenbl ywoman McMahon for the opportunity to talk
about the issues of college accessibility and
affordability, topics of inportance to the citizens
of New York State, and especially those in our
service area of Erie County and Western New York

As the first inny famly to go beyond
hi gh school, | understand the struggles that many
students face in the pursuit of a college education.

At SUNY Erie, | believe we not only deliver a
conprehensi ve, affordable, and accessi bl e education,
but we al so provide the support necessary for our
students to succeed.

Smal | class sizes, structured advi senment,
tutoring, opportunity prograns ainmed at underserved
popul ati ons, and ot her support nechani snms ensure our
students receive the personalized attention and
assi stance they need to conplete their education as
efficiently and affordably as possible.

SUNY Erie is truly the community's coll ege,
of fering three conveni ently-1ocated canpuses
t hroughout the county:

Qur North Canpus in WIllianmsville serves the
northern and eastern suburbs of Buffal o;

City Canpus is dowmmtown Buffalo, is easily
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accessible to our city residents;

And South Campus in Orchard Park and Hanburg
serves southern Erie County and beyond.

In addition, we have a new satellite canpus
on the east side of Buffalo, a community that has
experienced intergenerational poverty.

SUNY Erie offers nore than 100 associ ate
degrees, certificate, and online prograns, wth
fl exi bl e educational options, including full- and
part-tinme instruction; day, evening, and weekend
cl asses; as well as distance-I|earning opportunities,
to enabl e students to successfully achieve their
goal s.

We continue to be a great value to students,
in large part, because of funding fromPell, TAP,

t he Excel sior Schol arship, Say Yes Buffal o, and the
hundreds of thousands of dollars in schol arshi ps we
di stribute through the SUNY Eri e Foundation each
year.

Col l ectively, these progranms, along wth our
state and county funding, contribute to an
af f ordabl e public education at SUNY Erie.

And with |ife-changi ng progranms |ike EOP, we
are able to provide the support and services that

students need while they are with us, to help them
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succeed academ cally and personally.

SUNY Eri e has been hel ping students earn an
education for nore than 70 years, but there's a new
purpose, role, and identity for us today.

Qur nationally-recogni zed college is serving
as a mmjor social and econonmi c engine for the
regi on's renai ssance.

Prograns |i ke nanotechnol ogy and nechatronics
train students for i Mmedi ate careers in cutting-edge
fields, hands-on education in green-building
t echnol ogy, helps |l ead our region into an
envi ronnent al | y- sust ai nabl e future.

And our award wi nning culinary arts and
nursi ng prograns prepare our students to have an
i mredi ate inpact in their respective fields.

Qur students benefit fromthe instruction of
renowned faculty in dental -hygi ene and vi sion-care
t echnol ogy, but the inpact of these prograns extends
beyond traditional classroominstruction.

Qur regional community benefits fromthe
experiential learning practices of these two
prograns through free dental and vision-care
services in our comunity clinics.

And |'m proud to say that, under ny

direction, through better forecasting and pl anni ng,
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SUNY Erie has been able to hold the line on tuition
and fees, and operate within its approved budget
during nmy first two years as president.

Entering ny third year, however, that is
becom ng nore and nore difficult as we, as community
coll eges, face a perfect stormthat directly inpacts
how we do busi ness.

Low unenpl oynent rates, the declining nunber
of students of college age, and the growi ng gig
econony have a direct inpact on enrollnment trends at
comunity col | eges.

When the econony is strong, people can easily
find jobs and don't have a conpelling need to seek
additional skills or credentials to find work.

One area in which we at SUNY Erie will
continue to excel as a college is in our
understanding of and interaction with our students.

We often get lost in reciting facts and
figures to you when we're tal ki ng about funding, but
| want to | eave you with a story that shows the
i npact we have and why that funding is inportant.

So, like nyself, Yusef [ph.] is a
first-generation coll ege student who nade the
decision to cone to SUNY Erie to earn a degree in

dental -1 ab technol ogy.
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Wen we asked hi mwhy he chose that major, he
told us about his nother.

When he was growing up, his nother rarely
sm | ed because of her crooked teeth, and she |acked
sel f - est eem because of that.

Yusef consciously chose his vocation because
he wanted the opportunity to nake his nother, and
others like her, smle and feel better about
t hensel ves.

So we are asking for your support to ensure
that students |ike Yusef [ph.] can pursue their
dreanms and have a lasting inpact on the |lives of
those they will touch once they graduate.

Once again, | want to thank you for this
opportunity to address you this afternoon, and |'m
happy to answer any questions you may have.

SENATOR STAVI SKY: W' Il have questions after
ever ybody.

DR DAN HOCOY: That's fine.

Thank you.

SENATOR STAVI SKY: Dr. Del Cenio.

Thank you.

DR. BETH DEL GENIO Thank you.

Good afternoon.

|'"'mBeth Del Genio, chief of staff to the
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presi dent at the University at Buffalo.

On behalf of UB President Satish Tripathi,
| would Iike to thank Chairperson Stavisky,

Senat or Ti m Kennedy, Assenbl ynenber MMahon, for
this opportunity to give you a glinpse of UB, and
some of the work that we are doing to ensure access
to an excel |l ent education for all New Yorkers, and
to ensure we're having a positive inpact here in our
regi on and across New York State.

UB is the | argest, nobst conprehensive public
research university in the SUNY system

I n nineteen nine -- 1998 -- or, 1989 UB was
adm tted into the Association of Anerican
Universities, joining North Anerica's other | eading
research universities.

At UB, we enroll over 31,500 students and
of fer nearly 400 degree prograns.

Qur school s of dental nedicine, pharnacy,
social work, and public health are all ranked top 35
in the nation.

Today, UB is ranked 31lst anong public
research universities, according to "U. S. News and
Wrld Report."”

Over the last 10 years at UB, we have seen an

increase in retention and in our graduation rates,
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and in a nunber of our students receiving national
awar ds and honors.

We believe we have nore work to do in this
arena, including providing our students with nore
robust technol ogi cal interventions, enhanced student
advi sement, nodern student living and | earning
envi ronments, and, of course, additional
st udent - engagenent opportuniti es.

To give you a glinpse of what we have been
doing in terns of our innovative research, this
past year the University at Buffal o established the
UB Artificial Intelligence Institute.

At the institute, we, our researchers, are
wor ki ng to custom ze treatnents to i nprove patient
care, and to devel op next generation of autononous,
intelligent transportation systens.

| know you may have seen A 1li on our
Nort h Canmpus.

In fact, Chancellor Johnson recently
nom nated the director of our Artificial
Institute -- Artificial Intelligence Institute,

Dr. David Dornman, to the new y-established state
commi ssion to study artificial intelligence and
roboti cs.

| want to give you a glinpse of some of the
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work that we're doing at the intersection of our
research and clinical care.

This past year, UB's clinical research on
addi ctions | aunched Buffalo Matters.

This is a program devel oped by our
UB ener gency- nedi ci ne physicians to expedite patient
access to conprehensive opioid use disorder
treatnent.

This program Buffalo Matters, is believed to
be contributing to the decline in opioid-rel ated
deaths here in Erie County.

Wth the support with the New York State
Department of Health, the programis expandi ng
across New York State.

And with additional support fromthe State,
we believe we can conbat this crisis that has
destroyed lives, famlies, and comunities across
our state.

At UB, our Jacob School of Medicine and
Bi onedi cal Sci ences is the backbone of clinical care
and health delivery in Western New York

And t he Jacob School is training nmany of the
future doctors for Western New York, and, for
hospitals and practices across New York State.

UB physicians are al so working to reduce
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heal t h-care disparities.

And with additional support fromthe State
for the Jacob School, we would hire necessary
clinicians in critical nedical areas, which, in
turn, would inprove health-care outcones for the
menbers of our Buffalo and our regional conmunities.

Over the past seven years, the UB School of
Engi neeri ng has experienced a 62 percent increase in
under graduat e students and a 55 percent increase in
graduat e students.

As you already know, careers in the STEM
fields are growing 2 1/2 times faster than any ot her
field in the state.

New York ranks 36th in the nation in the
5-year growth rate of engineering degrees.

I n concl usi on:

We ask that you continue the current 5-year
capital plan to support critical maintenance for our
agi ng physical infrastructure, and that adding
capital funding for new academ c buil dings in
hi gh- denmand ar eas.

And as | close, again, | just wanted to
remnd you that UB and our affiliated entities
generate an estinmated econoni c inpact of

$2.18 billion, with a "b," annually in
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New York State.

Qur university's total workforce makes UB one
of the region's |argest enployers.

And with your support, we can continue to be
a local, regional, and statew de force for know edge
generation, sustainable econom c inpact, and
transformative clinical care for the citizens of
New York State.

| want to thank you.

It's been a privilege to conme before you on
behal f of the University at Buffal o, and we | ook
forward to working with you during the |egislative
sessi on.

Thank you.

SENATOR STAVI SKY: Thank you.

Next we have Lee Melvin, vice provost,
enrol | ment managenent, at the University at Buffalo.

LEE MARVIN. Ckay, thank you.

Good afternoon.

My name again is Lee Melvin. |'mthe
vi ce provost for enrollnment nmanagenent for the
Uni versity at Buffalo.

I"min nmy seventh year at UB in this role,
and | have over 28 years of experience in higher

education at public flagship institutions.
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As the institution's chief enroll nment
officer, I amresponsible for designing,
articulating, and inplenenting strategic enrol | nent
initiatives to maximze UB' s enroll nent.

| focus on undergraduate-, graduate-, and
pr of essi onal - student enrol |l nent, and work closely
wi th deans, vice presidents, and other vice provosts
to recruit, enroll, retain, and graduate a diverse
comunity of student scholars fromthe University at
Buf f al o.

Today, pursuing higher education at public
universities in New York requires financia
i nvestnments by the student, the famly, the
institution, and the State.

Based on ny experience in higher education,
tuition and fees at New York public institutions is
af fordable for famlies ranging fromlowincone
prof essions to those maki ng $125, 000 per year.

Over 68 percent of registered undergraduate
UB students receive sone type of financial
assi st ance.

The State of New York has created and
designed financial-aid prograns to assist students
with the cost of tuition froma range of

soci oeconom c i ncones.
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UB is able to tell a great story about the
affordability of tuition for our needi est students,
famlies, and state residents, and the deep
financial comm tment New York State has made to
reduce the cost of attending our public
institutions.

At UB, 7,616 students are eligible for
federal Pell grants to help assist with, but not
fully cover, the cost associated with tuition and
f ees.

We hope that, as the Wite House and Congress
negoti ate reauthori zation of the H gher Education
Act, the new support for Pell will be made
avai | abl e.

Students eligible for the Pell grants usually
have incones fromfamlies that nake $40, 000 or
bel ow.

New York State's Tuition Assistance Program
al so known as "TAP," was enacted to hel p account for
the difference between federal aid and the cost of
tuition, and assist famlies earning up to $80,000 a
year.

At UB, 8,277 students are currently receiving
TAP fundi ng.

We t hank Governor Cuonp and the |egislators
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who, over the years, have nade this possible.
Wth the creation of the Excel sior
Schol arship this year, students fromfamlies
earning up to $125,000 can now attend New Yor k
public institution tuition-free.
There are 1,868 UB students currently
recei ving fundi ng.
Were it not for the Excel sior schol arshi ps,
t hese students woul d have nore financial chall enges.
Agai n, we thank the Governor and the
| egi slators for nmaking this possible.
In total, UB current students receive over
$28, 881,965 a year to reduce the cost of tuition.
That is $28 mllion | ess debt to amass for

students and fam lies pursuing higher education at

UB.

You nul tiply that nunber by four and we end
have over a billion dollars saved for those
fam|lies.

Anot her positive financial-aid program
supported by the State is the Foster Youth Coll ege
and Success Initiatives.

This award will help fill the gap for
students who were in the foster-care system

UB remai ns af fordabl e, accessi bl e, and
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provi des a quality education to students.

The average under graduate | oan debt at
graduation for a UB student is $4,600 | ess than the
nati onal average, and $2,885 | ess than New York
school s.

One way we neasure the health of a UB degree
is by loan-default rates, and the |oan-default rate
for former UB students are |ower than the national
average, at 3.3 percent, versus 10.8 percent on the
nati onal average.

Clearly, these nunbers indicate that UB
graduates are securing enploynent with salaries to
hel p cover the cost of college | oans.

In closing, | want to share a conversation
| had with a butcher at one of ny |ocal grocery
stores that | frequent.

We usually make snall talk before | order ny
neat s.

He knows ny profession, and was excited to
share that his son was admtted to UB and severa
ot her SUNY col | eges.

He was nore excited about discussing news
regardi ng the passage and i nplenentati on of the new
Excel si or Schol arshi p Program

He said that the Excel sior Scholarship wll
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provide a lot of financial relief for himand his
wife.

It will allow their son to attend any SUNY
institution, and they were confident they could now
afford his coll ege educati on.

| was proud of his son, proud of the father,
and very proud that the State of New York coul d make
coll ege nore affordable for this famly.

As a professional in higher education,
| strongly believe the University at Buffalo, the
State University of New York, and New York State
remain conmtted to keeping the cost of higher
education affordable to our students and famlies.

| too |ook forward to answering any questions
you have regardi ng the cost of higher education.

SENATOR STAVI SKY: Thank you.

We have Dr. Cheryl Taplin, senior associate
vi ce provost for student success and retention.

CHERYL TAPLIN: Good afternoon.

My name is Cheryl Taplin, and I'm-- | serve
as senior associate vice provost for student success
and retention at the University of [sic] Buffalo.

And |'m happy to say, |'ve been at the
University of Buffalo for nore than 30 years.

Thank you, Chairworman Stavi sky,
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Senat or Kennedy, Assenbl ynenber MMahon, nenbers

of the Senate and | egislative staff, on affording ne
this opportunity to speak at this inmportant public
heari ng.

The University of [sic] Buffal o has many
assets that support student success and degree
conpl eti on.

The two that | will primarily focus on today
is our Finish in Four initiative, and the
State-funded Arthur O Eve Educational CQpportunity
Program

UB has made significant inprovenents in
graduation rates through our Finish in Four
initiative.

Finish in Four is a partnership between
students and UB, that provide students who take the
pl edge to graduate in four years, both the academc
support and course availability to achieve this
goal .

In its first year of inplenentation,

43 percent of entering freshnen class signed the
pl edge.

Now in its seventh year, 92 percent of
entering freshnen took the pledge.

And data shows that students who participate
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inthis initiative graduate at a higher rate than
the university average.

G ving sonme conparative data:

Over fall 2008 entering freshman cohort, they
had a 4-year graduation rate of 52.6 percent.

The first fall class entering for the
Finish in Four initiative in fall 2012 had a 4-year
graduation rate of 60.4 percent.

But the students who signed the pledge that
year had a 63 percent graduation rate.

So this shows that this initiative that we
pronot e has worked for our students.

Paul a, who took the pledge in fall 2012, and
graduated in four years, graduated with a triple
maj or fromthe University of Buffalo in four years,
and she stated, "Finish in Four strengthened ny
focus on ny goals for ny academ c career and
provi ded the resources to guarantee ny success."”

This clearly shows the power of students and
the university working together to neet a goal that
woul d reduce student debt and allow our students to
go out into the world as productive citizens.

The next 1'll talk about is the Arthur O Eve
Educati onal Qpportunity Program whi ch has afforded

access to those historically di sadvantaged students
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who have denonstrated the potential to succeed
acadenmi cally and personally, but needed a chance.

At UB we take pride in our EOP program

Qur nearly 800 EOP students thrive at our
institution and provide living testinony of their
struggl es to succeed.

For exanple, Aleah [ph.] was one of the
student recipients chosen for the 2019
Norman R. McConney, Jr., Award for EOP Student
Excel | ence.

Al eah plans to attend nedical school to give
back to her conmunity.

Mari ssa [ph.], another EOP student, who | ost
all her support systens through unexpected deaths,
continued to find that determ nation deep within
herself to persevere towards pursuing her career in
nur si ng.

Your continued support for progranms |ike EOCP
speaks vol unes, and puts a support systemin place
for students |ike Al eah and Marissa to achieve their
dreanms of beconi ng col | ege graduates.

The current 4-year graduation rate of our EOP
programis 66 percent, which is well beyond the
expectations that anyone coul d i magi ne.

Through continued financial support from
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Governor Cuonp and | egislatures, we are able to
provi de services and progranm ng toward student
success.

There are countless nore stories of how
di rect support to students and the University
of [sic] Buffalo have played a key role in student
success.

Wth your continued support, the University
of [sic] Buffalo will continue to its paths of
excel | ence and share many nore success stories such
as these.

Thank you for allowing ne to address this
i nportant topic.

SENATOR STAVI SKY: Thank you.

Do you have questions?

SENATOR KENNEDY:  Sure.

SENATOR STAVI SKY:  kay.

SENATOR KENNEDY: Well, thank you all for
your testinony, thank you for your being here, thank
you for your | eadership.

First of all, especially Cheryl, the | ast
thing you followed up, the Arthur O Eve |egacy and
t he hi gher-educati on opportunities.

| -- it's just -- as has al ready been

nmenti oned by Chair Stavisky, has hel ped t housands of
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i ndi vidual s across this state, over many years.
And -- he -- his legacy continues to carry on.

He is a constituent of mne.

And we had the proud honor of designating the
downt own canpus as the Arthur O Eve Higher
Educati on Canpus, not too | ong ago.

It's just a wonderful thing to hear how well
the programis doing.

So thank you again for your |eadership.

| want to touch on a couple of things, as it
pertains to capital funding, and as it pertains to
student tuition.

First of all, froma capital-needs
perspective, 1'd like to hear fromthe university,
as well as from ECC, of your plans; what you're
doi ng, where you're goi ng, what your vision is,
where we can be hel pful.

And then, fromECC, it's ny understandi ng
that there are enornmous needs at all institutions.

And | want to get into the details a bit here
while we have this forum

DR. BETH DEL GENIO  Thank you, Senator.

At the University at Buffalo we have a canpus
master plan for our three canpuses.

And as you m ght expect, we have -- we've
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been -- we've been growing. W have critical
mai nt enance needs as -- as well.

And what we -- when we think about our
capital master plan, it's our -- it's our
programming -- it's our academi c programmng, it's
our research, that really drives what happens inside
of the -- of the buil dings.

As | mentioned in ny testinony, is that, if
we want our students to be successful, if we want to
do the type of inpactful research that | -- that
| brushed upon a little bit in nmy testinony, then we
want to nmake sure that we are providing our students
the best living-learning spaces to begin with., W
want -- which includes classroons, |ibraries,
et cetera.

We al so want to nmake sure that we have a
research environnent that is nodern, and can nove us
forward in ternms of, not just our -- our own areas
of inquiry, but so that we can have an inpact, a
real societal inpact, in ternms of the work that
we' re doing in our research

So we need to have really nodernized spaces
for -- for our -- our research arena and for our
academ cs.

We've seen, as | nentioned, nmuch growh in
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ternms of engineering. W've seen that across, you
know, all areas of higher ed, the growmh in STEM
fields.

We al so know that, at the University at
Buf falo, we -- our enployers are conmng to us.
They -- they look to our graduates to -- to fil
i nportant posts in their businesses and industries,
especially in the STEM ar eas.

And as we take a | ook at our capital naster
pl anni ng, of course, in terns of the -- the physical
envi ronnment, you know, engineering, of course, is an
area in which, again, we've seen that growh, the
st udent demand.

And we believe that we can actually have an
i npact here in -- in our conmunity in
Western New York and across New York State, in terns
of the graduates we produce and, of course, the
research that we're doing.

SENATOR KENNEDY: So | know that the
university has conme to us with nmany different
capi tal needs, including, as you nentioned, the -- a
new engi neering school -- new engi neering building
for that school

That is on the table.

But for the lack of an appropriation, froma
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capital -projects perspective, our hands have been
tied.

No one has been a greater advocate than the
Chair of the H gher Education Comrttee.

SENATCOR STAVI SKY: It was in our one-House
budget .

SENATOR KENNEDY: Ri ght.

And as a matter of fact, | was discussing
this nmorning with sonme friends about
Senat or Stavi sky's | eadership, and that the fact
that there was no capital-projects funding was
really, not only under her skin, but driving the
entire Conference nad.

W are dead-set on getting that done, and
maki ng sure that the University of Buffalo, and
ot her universities throughout the system have the
resources necessary to nmake these strategic
i nvest nent s.

So thank you --

DR. BETH DEL GENIO Thank you.

SENATOR KENNEDY: -- for articulating that,
and your continued | eadership.

Presi dent Hocoy, you know, |'ve actually
heard concerni ng things about ECC and the | ack of

investnment in capital, and it being the biggest
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budget ary need.

Can you speak to that, please?

DR. DAN HOCOY:  Sure.

W're in the mdst of a master academ c and
facilities plan being done by JMZ

We expect a report in the spring.

But, Senator Kennedy, you are absolutely
correct, our facilities are in dire need of
mai nt enance.

Just a few weeks we had an HVAC unit fal
t hrough the ceiling and onto the corridor, which
coul d have killed soneone.

You know, gone are the days where peopl e use
chal kboards and sit in seats that face the front.

And our facilities are very outdated and no
| onger rel evant.

You know, obviously, we need SMART Boards and
connected environnments for our students.

The goal of mne is that, once we have this
report fromJMZ, that we would initiate a SUNY Erie
2025 canpaign for capital inprovenents, and that we
woul d work closely with the County, SUNY, and the
State to inprove our facilities.

W feel that we nmake a difference in

West ern New Yor k.
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W're a pivot institution. W change the
trajectory of people's |ives.

And it's ny belief that we're the best use of
t he public buck, with UB com ng a cl ose second.

[ Laught er. ]

SENATOR KENNEDY: Do you have a master plan?

DR DAN HOCOY: It -- like | said, JMZ is
currently in the process of doing that, exactly.

And we woul d have -- we do have a master plan
report schedul ed for the spring of 2020.

SENATOR KENNEDY: Another thing | wanted to
ask you, President Hocoy, was about concerns |'ve
heard about intellectual property.

And so the facilitators, the educators, being
able do their work and educate the students, and do
so in a manner where their work is protected.

And | want to know if you're privy to these
conversations, and if you have any plans to address
t hese issues?

DR. DAN HOCOY: No, | haven't heard anyt hing
regardi ng those concerns, actually.

SENATOR KENNEDY: Vi deo programm ng?

Taki ng a professor's educational work,
putting it on video, and then dispersing it, is that

ring a bell?
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DR. DAN HOCOY: No --

SENATOR KENNEDY: Ckay.

DR DAN HOCOY: -- it's news to ne.

SENATOR KENNEDY: It's been brought to ny
attention.

We'll get back to you

DR DAN HOCOY: |I'd like to know nore about
t hat .

SENATOR KENNEDY: Yeah, we'll get back to you
on that.

Just, sone concerning issues regarding
intellectual property, regarding capital, that
| think we should work closely on to address.

The master plan, do you know -- do you have a
timeline on that master plan?

DR. DAN HOCOY: Spring 2020.

SENATOR KENNEDY: Al right. Geat.

And then, as far as students go, and the
affordability, and we've tal ked about the
opportunity programthat's avail abl e.

| want to talk a little bit about TAP fundi ng
and the inpact that that is having on your students.

Can you speak to that, M. Melvin?

LEE MARVIN:  Sure.

So as | nentioned, we have over
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8,000 students that are currently receiving
TAP fundi ng.

And we think, with that funding, that has
reduced their tuition costs.

And we believe it's allowed students to
pursue degrees that they are interested in pursuing,
and at an affordable price, with an outstandi ng
faculty available to teach those students.

We al so believe those students are in |line
with what we're pronoting at the institution, which
is to graduate in four years. So the TAP funding is
set for four years.

The TAP funding is flexible when it comes to
students that are no longer eligible, but then can
receive the funding the followi ng senester or year.

And so that's been very hel pful for our
st udent s.

W' ve been able to tal k about the TAP fundi ng
when we're out doing presentations to famlies
across the state.

And so we believe that, you know, this
information allows students and famlies to conpare
us to other schools that they' re considering, both
public and private institutions.

And we al so believe that it gives us an
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opportunity to encourage themto conme to an
institution that we believe is positioned to help
retain those students, but also to graduate nore
educated citizens for Western New York, but also for
the state of New York

So that -- and that TAP funding will help
t hose students throughout the rest of their lives
because they will not have to repay those funds.

SENATOR KENNEDY: Thank you.

SENATOR STAVI SKY:  Assenbl ywonan.

ASSEMBLYMEMBER McMAHON:  Hi .

M. Melvin, thank you for your testinony
t oday.

|"ve heard recently from sonme hi gh school
students in ny district. | think it was a project
in their AP governnent class, perhaps to wite to ne
about an issue.

And one thing that has come up is the
Excel si or program

And many famlies in Anmherst, they have the
benefit of having sone neans, but they m ght be
right over that $125,000 limt, and they're just
squeezed, you know, it's that -- that sweet spot,
where you make too much noney to qualify for aid,

but maybe not enough to just wite that check.
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And so |'mwondering -- so the questions to
ne are:

What about nerit aid?

What about taking into account -- well, this
may not be a question for you -- but, the Excel sior
program taki ng i nto account househol d nunbers, or
maybe sliding scal es of inconme?

How -- how woul d you address prospective
students who find thenselves in that -- that -- that
conundr unf

LEE MARVIN. Well, the nerit-aid piece, |et
nme start there, because that one is in my purview.

Over 32 percent of our incom ng freshnmen
receive some type of nmerit aid at the institution

Five years ago we were around 26 percent.

So we've been taking our nerit-aid funds that
we have and we've spread those out to students,
based on their area of interest, if they're nmgjoring
in engineering or in arts and sciences or nursing or
architecture.

So we've been able to stretch the funds that
we currently have avail able to us.

Qur funds have not increased, but we've been
using themnore strategically to help reduce the

cost for students and famlies, but -- and naking
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sure nore students can cone in on nerit aid.

Merit aid is tied to SAT scores.

Hi gher SAT scores are usually tied to
famlies from hi gher-incone | evels.

And that's what all the research shows, not
all, but many of those students are coning from
hi gher-incone famlies.

Anot her opportunity for students in the
state, especially if they're going into the STEM
program is the STEM Tuition Rei mbursenent Program

You know, so those in the top 10 percent of
their classes, and they're | ooking at STEM those
famlies, there's no income cap on that nunber, so
t hey can request those funds if they are in one of
those majors. So that's reducing their cost as
wel | .

And as far as -- I'mgoing to tal k about the
expected famly contribution quickly, because
that's, of course, determ ned through the federa
nmet hodol ogy.

And so we use the federal nethodol ogy, not a
school net hodol ogy.

And so once we receive that information, we
apply that to the student's aid package.

The famlies are going to pay that expected
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famly contribution at nost institutions that they
attend.

So if you have $5,000, nost financial-aid
packages are designed with that $5,000 in famly
contri bution.

| f you have $25, 000, nost financial-aid
packages are designed with that $25,000 in m nd.

And so students that are just above the
$125, 000, our advice to them is they continue to
| ook for schol arshi ps.

And so we've created new schol arship portal s
on the campus, so students can go in, fill out
i nformati on, and have a drop-down nenu of
schol arshi ps they m ght be eligible to receive.

But we also rem nd students and famlies to
work with our financial-aid office and their
advi sors, especially when their famlies cone under
financial stress, where they may have to wthdraw
fromschool if we can't provide enmergency funding
for them

So we are |ooking at as many ways possible to
hel p them afford the higher education, but also to
stay in college and persist on to the next |evel.

ASSEMBLYMEMBER McMAHON:  Dr. Del Geni o,

getting back to capital funding, | hate to ask you
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to prioritize things. It's like picking a favorite
chi | d.

But, | was visited by the dean of the
engi neering school, who, | was sad to |earn, has

t aken another job, or plans on | eaving?

DR BETH DEL GENIO  Yes, she is now the
provost at the University of Arizona.

ASSEMBLYMEMBER McMAHON: Wl |, she was
very -- she was really enthusiastic about the
project. And | can see that it would have a | ot of
value to, not just the university, but our comunity
as wel | .

That seens to be a priority project for the
uni versity.

Is that -- am | reading that correctly?

DR BETH DEL GCENIO.  You are -- you are
absol utely reading that correctly, yes.

And -- and, of course, we also have, just
|i ke President Hocoy spoke to earlier, in terns of
general, you know, critical maintenance needs, you
know, across our three canpuses.

But engineering is definitely an
institutional priority.

ASSEMBLYMEMBER McMAHON:  Thank you.

DR. BETH DEL GENIO Thank you.
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SENATOR STAVI SKY:  Thank you.

And, yes, I'mwell aware of the needs for --
the need for capital funding for your engineering
school

UB has cone to see nme in Al bany on this
issue. And so has -- Senator Kennedy and | have
di scussed it on nultiple occasions.

The real problemis that we have not had a
capi tal budget since -- a 5-year capital plan since
2008, and as a result, buildings are crunbling, and
repairs are beyond the capital nmintenance -- the
critical -mai ntenance phase.

And we are planning additional hearings,
probably in Al bany, on the need for a 5-year capital
pl an.

We've had legislation in Al bany requiring a
5-year capital plan.

The Assenbly has passed it. W have passed

It has not been enact ed.

The | egi sl ati on does not specify the program
sinply the concept of a 5-year capital plan.

But | et me ask one question, and that is:

The rel ati onship between the University at

Buf falo, and | guess Erie County Conmunity Coll ege
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al so, but particularly UB, and the business
comunity, because | think that is extrenely
critical, because everybody will benefit with the
j obs that are created, and so on.

And | nust say, | visited Cornell Tech about
a year ago, on Roosevelt Island in Manhattan. And
it is an amazi ng, amazing pl ace.

And | would | ove to see sonething |like that
in Buffal o because of the econom c benefit.

So can you tell us a little bit about how the
uni versity and the business comunity are worKking
t oget her ?

DR. BETH DEL GENIO Thank you.

And, you know, that is very inportant to us.

We all know, you know, we are -- we are
citizens of -- of -- of -- of Buffalo, of Erie
County, of Western New York, and we know t hat
busi ness and industry cone into our region from
pl aces across the nation, and across the world,
because they want to be | ocated or co-located with
maj or educational institutions: SUNY Erie,
Buffalo State College, the University at Buffalo.

And they are | ooking -- business and industry
are | ooking at our graduates, our intellectual

resources, the innovation that we're doing, to drive




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N NN N NN P R PR R R R R R R
gag A W N P O © 0o N oo 0o M W N+ O

44

t heir busi nesses and industries.

So there is absolutely a synergistic
rel ati onshi p between and anong busi ness and i ndustry
and the University at Buffalo.

So we actually, a few years back, our office
of the vice president for research expanded its
purview into the vice president -- the office of the
vice president for research and econoni c devel opnent
so that we could have a front door to business and
i ndustry.

We know how inportant it is, not only to
graduate students, but to keep them here in Buffalo,
in Western New York, in New York State, so that we
can -- we can have, not just a -- not just see sone
econoni ¢ i npact today, but have sustainable econonic
i mpact .

And | think, Senator, you're exactly right,
when you have i nnovation happening as well, not just
our graduates, but innovation, that is fueling new
ideas, and it is attracting really great conpani es.

And, we also want to make sure that we have
created an ecosystem so that our students who are
doi ng entrepreneurial work, and our faculty and
their spin-off conpanies, is that they can actually

stay here in Buffalo, in Western New York, in
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New York State.

So it's absolutely -- it's dynamcs, it's
synergistic, and it's -- it's sonething that --
that -- that we do here.

Thank you.

SENATOR STAVI SKY:  Thank you.

DR. DAN HOCOY: | --

SENATOR STAVI SKY:  Senator Kennedy -- oh, I'm
sorry.

Yes.

SENATCR KENNEDY: We at SUNY Erie consider
t he busi ness community a very close partner in terns
of inmproving the soci oecononm ¢ and cul tural
prosperity of Wstern New York

As you m ght know, there's a huge skills gap
currently in Western New York, and our job as the
community college is really to address those needs.

So we have been working closely with GV
Western Autonotive, G tibank, Facebook, Tesla, as
wel | as many others, to ensure that they get the
talent they' re looking for, and that our students
get the training and the jobs that they're | ooking
for.

Soit's really a win-wn.

We have industry actually investing in the
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col | ege.
Citibank, for instance, provided us with
$200, 000 just to put a tablet up to advertise their

sumer and career opportunities.

West Herr just gave us $150,000 to put in new

lifts so that they can get nore auto technicians.

And so we feel that this is a close
partnership, and this is to the benefit of the
county.

SENATOR STAVI SKY:  Senat or Kennedy.

SENATOR KENNEDY: Thank you very much.

Goi ng back to the capital, Beth, and
| appreciate you pointing out the inpact that the
curriculum conbined with a proper capital expense,
and a strategic capital expense, can have on the
| ocal econony.

The UB 2020 initiative was a brilliant
investnment that is truly transformng our entire
downt own corri dor.

And it's kudos to the | eadership here once
again at the university.

So, thank you.

And then just to touch on the ECC s capital
again, I -- ny -- ny concern goes to us planning

ahead here, and | ooking to, once again, nake sure
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that we have what's necessary in the capital plan,
and froma financial perspective.

If the -- the -- the capital master plan is
not comng until the spring, it may not be possible
to include that in those nunbers in what we are
advancing within the confines of our Denocratic
Conf er ence budget .

So -- so if there's any way that we can --

DR. DAN HOCOY: Sure, we can --

SENATCR KENNEDY: -- fast-track that --

DR. DAN HOCOY: -- when do you need the
nunber s, Senat or Kennedy?

SENATOR KENNEDY: Yest erday.

[ Laught er. ]

SENATCOR KENNEDY: The sooner the better.

| think it needs to be a priority.

And the only way we can fight for those funds
is if we know what we're fighting for.

And especially froma budgetary perspective
that we're advancing these nunbers, it's inperative
t hat we get those.

You know, we will be, in very short order --
you know, look, if the gov -- if we can get the
Governor to include this within his budget, that --

that -- that -- that is a great way to get out of
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t he gate.

Then it's just a matter of finessing the
nunbers to nake it work for everyone.

| f that does not happen, then our Conference
is conmtted to, once again, advancing it. And that
woul d be within the first week of January where a

| ot of these conversations are going to have to take

pl ace.

But |eading up to that, within the next two
months, | would say --

DR. DAN HOCOY: Ckay.

SENATOR KENNEDY: -- the sooner we can get
t hose.

DR. DAN HOCOY: G eat.

SENATOR KENNEDY: Thank you.

SENATOR STAVI SKY:  Yeah, and pl ease
understand that the | egislative session in January
is going to be alittle bit different than the past,
because the anticipated close will be the first week
in June.

And we are going to be in session additional
days during the beginning of session.

Were, traditionally, it's been, you know,
Monday and Tuesday, they're going to Wdnesday, to

make up for the -- 57 days have been schedul ed for
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2020.

But they are planning to close June 2nd, or
maybe June 3rd.

In the past, it's been the end of June.

SENATOR KENNEDY: One | ast thing.

SENATOR STAVI SKY: One |l ast thing.

SENATCR KENNEDY: And one | ast comment, on a
separate note, and let ne just reiterate this:

The Chai rwoman's extraordi nary advocacy for
the capital planis just -- it's -- it's
unbel i evabl e.

| think part of why she wants to get this
capital plan done is so that she stops hearing from
peopl e |ike ne.

[ Laught er. ]

SENATOR STAVI SKY:  Yes, right, absolutely
true.

[ Laught er. ]

SENATOR KENNEDY: But | just want to switch
gears for a nonent, because | think it's critically
i mportant we get it on the record about the
University at Buffalo and the debt, and the issue
regardi ng the downt own canpus, the debt that
ultimately has been put on the back of the canpus,

the comm tnent that was made initially fromthe




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N NN N NN P R PR R R R R R R
gag A W N P O © 0o N oo 0o M W N+ O

50

State of New York, and, ultimately, being able to
financially deal with the issues that you have at
hand, at the same tine, trying to advance t he agenda
actually for the students on the canpus.

Can you just speak to that?

DR. BETH DEL GENIO  Certainly.

Tal ki ng about the Jacob School of Medicine
and Bi onedi cal Sciences, as | said in ny testinony
earlier, our -- our physicians, our
clinicians/researchers, popul ate our hospitals.

They, literally, lift up the clinical care in
the city of Buffalo and our region, including ECMC
O shei Children's Hospital, Buffal o General
Hospi t al .

When you go into those hospitals, you will be
treated by a resident or a physician who is UB MD.

As we popul ate, as we hold up clinical care
inthis comunity, we, of course, we need support,
addi ti onal support for the state, to make sure that,
incritical-need area, critical clinical areas, that
we have physicians who -- who are providing clinical
care.

And if we don't, then we have actual ly gaps
in our practice.

Wth those gaps, that neans that we're -- you
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know, we won't be able to inprove patient outcones.

It neans that we won't be able to reduce
heal t h-care disparities.

So when we tal k about additional support from
the State, in terns of the Jacob School of Medi cine,
is be -- is that we need -- we, literally, need
faculty in -- in critical clinical areas so that we
can provide the very best patient care.

And when we think about patient care, of
course, we're thinking about our famlies, our
friends, our neighbors, the nenbers of our
comunity.

But | think it's also inportant, as we talk
about clinical care, is that it also can be -- it
attract patients from outside of our region and our
st at e.

So, we don't want folks here in Buffal o and
in Western New York to go to Pittsburgh, to go to
Cleveland Cinic, to goto the Mayo dinic, to
buy -- provide -- to find the very best clinical
care. We want themto find it right here.

And we want other folks from across the
nation to cone into our region, to come into our
city, for the very best transformative clinical

care.
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We can only do that if we've got -- we've got
the right docs in all of the right specialties.

And that's why we need support.

SENATCR KENNEDY: And the bottomline is, the
State needs to make good on the State's conm tnent
to the university, and to the nedical school in the
downt own canpus.

And to this point, there is a gap in funding,
and it is on the back right now of the university
debt .

Was that -- is that an accurate depiction?

DR BETH DEL GENIO It neans that there are
certain things that we are not able to do, just as
| descri bed.

SENATOR KENNEDY: Thank you.

SENATCR STAVI SKY:  Yeah, and that theneg,
| think, is very apparent throughout the SUNY system
in this part of the state, because |I've heard from
canpuses nearby that they're | osing students to
ot her states, and what -- particularly, Onio.

And to me, that's sort of m nd-boggling.

And the question is, how do we deal with
t hat ?

Whet her we have -- and it doesn't apply to

the health care. It applies to the entire SUNY
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system

And how do we stemthe concept of people
goi ng el sewhere for their education?

And we've tal ked internally about
differential tuition, allowing colleges to set their
own, which | don't think is a good idea.

But, nevertheless, we're losing students in
the North Country to Vernont and Canada.

And we're well aware of that issue.

So | understand what you're sayi ng.

W're trying to find a solution, we're just

not there yet.

And | -- your discussion of the Jacob School
is for non-cap. It's for operating (indiscernible)
rather, | think ought to be clear, than capital.

kay?

Anybody el se?
And | guess we're good.
And we thank you all for com ng.
SENATOR KENNEDY: Thank you, all.
ASSEMBLYMEMBER McMAHON:  Thank you.
(Al'l witnesses say "Thank you.")
SENATOR STAVI SKY: Ch, |I'msorry.
Next we have Blair Horner, the executive

director of the New York Public Interest Research
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G oup.

And then we'll have the students.

Traditionally at these hearings, |'ve had the
students cone second.

But, we thank M. Horner for making the
trinp.

BLAIR HORNER: Wl |, thank you.

Thank you, all.

Thank you, Senator Stavisky, Senator Kennedy,
Assenbl ywoman McMahon.

My name is Blair Horner. |1'm NYPIRG s
executive director.

NYPIRG i s a statew de organi zation that has
col l ege and university students elected fromthe
schools. That's ny board of directors.

So there are state universities, city
university, and independent colleges that are on our
boar d.

Not surprisingly, higher education is an
issue that is of inportance to them

And we submtted witten testinony, but ['1]
sunmari ze the comments, because | heard the -- that
t he hook m ght be out if I go past five mnutes.

And no filibustering on ny end.

So when we were | ooking at -- looking at the
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hearing, the -- we looked at it in the context of
t he SUNY 2020 | aw that passed in 2011.

And as you all may recall, when the SUNY 2020
| aw passed, there was sort of a grand bargain: That
col | ege students woul d pay nore through regul ar
increases in tuition, and the State would maintain
its effort so that the tuition hikes were not used
to backfill budget hol es.

And the theory was, that the increases in
tuition would be used to inprove student services on
col | ege canpuses.

So when we -- and as you all know from
| egi sl ation that has passed in both your Houses, the
mai nt enance-of -effort | egislation had a | oophole in
it, basically, ignoring key things; inflationary
cost, collective bargaining, et cetera.

And the Legislature has repeatedly tried to
fix that, because the -- the -- it creates financial
stress on the coll eges and universities so they
don't have the resources to cover those services.

And the | egislatures passed it, and the
| egi sl ation, as you know, has been vetoed by the
gover nor.

And so one part of the SUNY 2020 bargain, in

terms of the State's effort, is inadequate, in our
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Vi ew.

And then the second part of it is, and
there's been increasing discussion on this, is the
TAP gap.

As you know, as tuition goes up, part of the
grand bargain in SUNY 2020 was that, you know, back
in the old days, every tine tuition would go up at a
public college and university, the TAP award woul d
go up as well to cover the tuition cost for the poor
st udents.

Part of the deal in 2020 was that, instead of
that, the coll eges would nake up the difference,
that the TAP award woul d be capped out, spend,
roughly, $5, 000.

Tuition kept going up, and so now there's,
roughly, a $2,000 difference between tuition and
TAP. And so the canpuses have to eat that.

So there's two financial pressures on the
systemthat we think are reflected in the comments
you'll see in our testinony, of exanples of where
col |l ege and universities are now conpl ai ni ng t hat
they don't have the resources that they need, and
that they' ve been involved in departnent cutbacks,
reductions in services.

We've heard fromit students -- again, we




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N NN N NN P R PR R R R R R R
gag A W N P O © 0o N oo 0o M W N+ O

57

touch on themin the testinmony -- from students,

t hat advi sement services have been cut back, and so
that they're having, instead of an enhanced student
experience, they are not having the enhanced student
experience that was part of the grand bargain.

And so one of the things we did recently is,
we | ooked at: Well, what's been the financial cost
to public-college students as a result of SUNY 20207

And we did an anal ysis, where we | ooked at
full-time-enrolled college students at four-year and
t wo-year state university and SUNY university
syst ens.

We | ooked at the amount of tuition has gone
up at each one of those institutions and aggregated
it. Deduct it fromit what seened |ike a reasonable
estimate on how much TAP covered the increases in
tuition.

And we cone up with at least $2.5 billion
nore col | ege students have paid as a result of
SUNY 2020.

And so we think it's pretty clear that the
students have kept their end of the bargain from
SUNY 2020.

We think the State should do nore.

And so we highlight in our testinony, really,
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four areas that we reconmend, that, certainly, to
t he Governor, and to the Legislature, in the final
budget :

One is, to freeze tuition

Two is, to close the TAP gap, and to approve
enhanced mai ntenance-of-effort |egislation;

Enhance TAP and Excel si or Schol arship
programs in ways that nake it nore useful to nore
st udent s;

And, fourth, to -- and this is really
directed at the Governor's Ofice, is to at |east
ensure the opportunity prograns are not cut.

As you know, there's the annual dance between
t he executive and the |egislative branch, where
opportunity prograns, which you've al ready heard
about, and everyone knows, work extrenely well, are
cut as part of the executive budget. And then you
guys get to add the noney back in.

We think that that kind of dance should end
and that those prograns be expanded.

So all of those things are sort of our
anal ysi s.

We've had, (indiscernible) others, as
Senat or Stavi sky nmentioned, college students have

testified.




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N NN N NN P R PR R R R R R R
gag A W N P O © 0o N oo 0o M W N+ O

59

The reason |'m here today is because we did
do this recent analysis, there may be sone questions
on that.

And -- let ne stop there.

SENATOR STAVI SKY:  Thank you.

I ncidental ly, TAP has not increased since
2014.

BLAIR HORNER: | thought there was the
i ncrease fromb5, 000, to $5, 165.

SENATOR STAVI SKY: And that was a very snal
i ncrease.

BLAIR HORNER: That's right, that's right.

SENATOR KENNEDY: First of all,
unsurprisingly, you are very concise, to the point,
and got right to it.

So thank you.

Thank you al so for your |eadership on just a
myriad of other issues across the state.

Your | eadership is really extraordinary.

So, really, thank you.

As it pertains to the TAP gap, | think our
entire Conference, | can speak for nyself, but
| think our entire Conference feels the sanme way.

We have to cl ose the gap

W have to eradicate the gap
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There shoul d not be a gap.

There should not be an obstacle when it cones
to finances in this state for individuals that are
| ooking to gain a higher educati on.

In 2019, heading into 2020, the tinme is
absol utely now to resolve this issue.

So | believe we're going to be going on into
the next legislative session with a head of steam on
resol ving that issue.

As far as the other initiatives that you' ve
outlined, | think it's very inportant that we take a
strong | ook at every single one of them and do our
best to make it work, nake it work for the system

And, again, you have been on the front |ines
of all of these initiatives, and | just want to
t hank you for your efforts.

BLAIR HORNER: Well, thank you. That's very
ni ce.

SENATOR STAVI SKY: And that report you
pr epar ed.

BLAI R HORNER:  Just nention one thing.

The 2.5 billion, by the way, we think is a
very conservative estinate.

It does not include the per-credit-hour

increase for part-tine students, because that would
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have been a nightrmare to try to figure out.

We didn't |ook at winter or summer students.

We did not include the current academ c year.

And so it's an estimate, and we tried to be
as conservative as possible, because we don't want
to bl ow snoke or anything like that. R ght?

W want to be as best as we can.

But it's billions of dollars.

"So where did it go?" is the question for you
guys.

If it's -- is it being used to backfil
budget hol es, which would run counter to what it is
that you all said in 2011 as part of SUNY 2020, or
has it gone sonewhere el se?

| mean, we don't know.

We coul d not | ook that up.

And certainly one thing I would flag for the
| egi sl ative branch, in your oversight capacity, it's
pretty clear the students are paying billions of
dol l ars nore.

What's it getting used for?

And | think that's a legitimate |ine of
inquiry that could lead to, there may be ot her
i ssues that cone out of that sort of conversation

ASSEMBLYMEMBER McMAHON:  Thank you,
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M. Horner.

When you tal ked about your four points,

Nunber 3, enhance TAP and Excel si or prograns, could
you just briefly speak to that?

Li ke, what do you envision those enhancenents
to be?

BLAIR HORNER: Yeah, I'm-- the -- I'll give
you nore -- |'ll just give you one exanple.

At one point in New York's career, graduate
students were covered under the TAP program and now
they' re not.

So there's a long list of things that can be
done to noderni ze the TAP program

And sone steps have been taken, and it's not
i ke nothing's happened in this area. It's easier
to get part-time aid, for exanple, than it used to
be.

But there are a nunber of things you could
you do to nodernize TAP.

When it comes to Excelsior, the thing that
| hear that is the nost disturbing about it, and,
agai n, Excelsior program if you get it, it's really
good news.

| f you don't get it, well, you know, no harm

no foul.
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But for those students who get into the
program and then, for whatever reason, end up not
being able to maintain the m ni nrum standards, that
turns into a | oan.

And for the students, that's the nore
troubling, sort of, anecdotal things that we' ve
heard about, and | think we refer to sone of those
things in the testinony, where students that thought
they were getting a grant now turns into a | oan.

And, you know, it's the twenty-first century.

In the same way as 100 years ago,
progressives advocated for K -- or, elenmentary and
secondary school being free and universal, we think
that coll ege should be the same thing as you're
| ooking into the twenty-first century.

And | know that there are -- there's been
| egislation that's being discussed to anmend the
state constitution to do just that.

And | would think the public-policy direction
shoul d go that way.

The public-policy direction should be, you
get coll ege education as |ong as you can -- you
know, you can neet whatever standards are required
to get into school

It shouldn't be a financial obstacle.
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So, to go back to the sort of tuition issue,
that really does matter where that noney went
because, if it's not being invested in student
services, you need -- you have a right to know that.

The public does too.

And what is being shortchanged by the TAP
gap, the lack of an enhanced mai ntenance of effort,
for exanple, could create the financial stresses
that set up an environnment, where -- you know, al
nmoney i s fungible, but where the tuition noney is
bei ng sort of clawed back into, really, filling
budget hol es.

Long answer.

You didn't even ask a question, | gave you a

| ong answer, no matter what.

"' m sorry.
ASSEMBLYMEMBER McMAHON: | think you --
BLAIR HORNER: | prom sed not to filibuster,

and then what did | do?

ASSEMBLYMEMBER McMAHON: It was a good
answer .

SENATOR STAVI SKY: (I naudible.)

BLAIR HORNER: Ri ght, exactly.

Anyt hi ng el se?

SENATOR STAVI SKY: No, and we thank you.
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BLAIR HORNER: Wl |, thank you for having ne
up here up. | appreciate it.

And, hopefully, | set a standard for being..

SENATOR STAVI SKY: And | nust say, we've had
students from NYPIRG testify at all of the hearings
so far, and it's appreci at ed.

BLAIR HORNER: Today you got the old guy.

Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMEMBER McMAHON:  Thank you.

SENATOR STAVI SKY:  Thank you.

Now we have the student government heads.

W have Gael |l e Jean-Baptise, president,
under graduat e student government at Buff State;

Yousouf -- | apologize if | m spronounce your
name -- Yousouf and Georgia from UB

(I'naudi ble) will be Andy Sako after.

And then UUP

Thank you for com ng.

SENATOR KENNEDY: Thank you all.

SENATOR STAVI SKY:  kay.

SENATOR KENNEDY: Wl cone.

YOUSOUF AMOLEGBE: Hello. M nane is
Yousouf Anol egbe.

There was a mi stake on ny nane on the agenda,

but it's all right.




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N NN N NN P R PR R R R R R R
gag A W N P O © 0o N oo 0o M W N+ O

66

But |1'mhere on be -- I'mthe undergraduate
student association president at University at
Buf f al o.

| "' m here on behal f of ny 20,000 undergraduate
constituents -- undergrad constituents, as well as
on behalf of the SUNY trustee and SUNY Institute and
Assenbly president, President Ostro, as the
1.4 mllion students of our green university system

We very much appreciate the efforts of
Senate -- Senate Committee Chair Stavisky,

Senat or Kennedy, and U -- UB undergrad and
| aw- school al umi, Assenbl ywonan McMahon - -

ASSEMBLYMEMBER McMAHON:  McMahon.

YOUSOUF AMOLEGBE: McMahon. Sorry about
t hat .

-- (indiscernible) a series of hearings
across the state of New York to address the cost of
publ i ¢ hi gher education, affordability, and
accessibility.

The student assenbly -- student assenbly is
recogni zed systemm de, supporting the students of
SUNY. The student assenbly is conprise -- conprised
of student |eaders fromacross the state, and
represents the students fromthe nmany universities,

centers, and colleges -- technol ogy coll eges, and
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community col | eges, and advocates, on the |ocal,
state, and federal |evel.

The president of the student assenbly serves
as the head of the organi zed student governnent for
all 64 canmpuses in the system and holds the
position as the only student nenber of the
student -- student board of trustees.

Twi ce, annually, the student assenbly brings
t oget her hundreds of student |eaders from across the
state, and beyond, to participate in
student - | eader shi p conferences, where student
advocates the prioritize -- priorities are final --
are -- are finalized, and nmenbers are offered the
opportunity to network and | earn | eadership skills
from students, canpus and system adm ni stration and
faculty, through various workshops and net --
network -- networking opportunities.

Additionally, the student assenbly
representatives neet on a nonthly basis to
coordi nate advocacy efforts, and for the refined
strategies toward the advancenent of quality and
affordable -- afford -- affordability in public
hi gher educati on.

The student assenbly operates in a very -- in

a variety of commttees, focused on a share -- and
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shari ng academ c excel |l ence throughout the system
and (indiscernible) the areas of canpus safety,
disability services, gender equity, and
sustainability.

The student assenbly, and as well as the
student association, urges the student -- the State
to recogni ze and act upon the nagnitude under which
under fundi ng -- underfundi ng public higher education
has on the delivery of services and the quality of
education across the system

The conmmittee clearly identifies the benefit
of the state from accessible state university, due
to return on investnent made by students pursuing
wi t h higher education in New York

Graduates of SUNY are likely to work and live
in New York, and continue to stinulate |ocal and
state econony -- econom es through enpl oynent and
t axes.

Adequat el y fundi ng hi gher education holds the
potential to yield a great return on investnent for
the state, as students, faculty, and staff from
across the SUNY system continue -- continue to
enhance the quality of life and econo -- economc
prosperity in their comunities.

Various state and federal financial-aid
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progranms greatly benefit the students of SUNY.

The tuition assistance programis
(i ndi scernible) students in attending in-state
post -secondary institutions; however, there is a
consi stent gap in the fundi ng mechani smt hat
penal i zes canpuses for accepting and enrolling
students who utilize the tuition assistance program

The shortfall in funding by the State to
provide this support has severely dimnished and --
the ability of our canpuses to provide quality
educate -- quality education and critical student
servi ces.

Wth increased investnment by the State in
institutions of public higher education, students
can benefit nore fromaquality education, services,
and prograns, such as nmental health, counseling, and
food pantries, EOP, academ c advi senment, and gender
and sex -- sexuality resources at -- at a -- at an
af f ordabl e cost.

Additionally, the ex -- the
Excel si or Schol arship, in conbination with other
student financial-aid progranms, allows eligible
students to attend a SUNY college tuition-free.

This programis successful, as it aids

students in graduating on time with | ess debt.
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The University of Buffal o Student
Associ ation, as well as the student assenbly, urges
the State to expand the prom se of the Excel sior
col | ege schol arshi p, and i npl enent neasures that
woul d all ow for a greater nunber of students to
apply -- apply the scholarship to the academ c area.

As well, the University of Buffal o Student
Associ ation and the student assenbly urges the State
to invest in public higher education by funding the
shortfall created by the tuition assistance program
maki ng amendnent to the current financial prograns
avai l abl e to students, and recognizing its
fundanmental role and responsibility for a
wor | d-cl ass education at a -- at an affordabl e cost
to all.

Wth an increase in fundi ng and expansi on of

aid -- expansion -- expansion of aid prograns,
canpuses across the state will be equipped to
provi de greater quality edu -- greater quality

education and student services that address the
backgrounds and needs of all students.

Now | would like to call on United Student
Government president, Gaelle Jean-Baptise, to expand
upon the inportance of sone of -- sone points | just

ment i oned.
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GAELLE JEAN- BAPTI SE: Good afternoon.

SENATCR KENNEDY: CGood afternoon.

GAELLE JEAN-BAPTISE: M nane is
Gael l e Jean-Baptise. |1'ma Buffalo State senior,
maj oring in sociology. And I'malso the United
St udents Gover nment president.

|"d like to thank you all for the opportunity
to be heard, and to speak on behal f of ny peers.

As president, and as a student, | have
noticed so nmany different issues throughout, not
only ny canpus, but other canpuses as well.

One thing all struggling canpuses have in
comon i s usual ly noney.

On Buffalo State's canpus, students cone to
me all the time with different ideas, and nany of
themcan't be inplenented due to the |ack of nopney.

|"ve al so noticed that many students have
| eft Buffalo State because they can't afford to be
here, which is extrenely unfortunate.

There are nore inportant things that should
be at our schools, like nmental -health prograns and
better advisenment and resources, to help all our
denogr aphi cs.

As a college student, we deal with so many

different issues daily.
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| nyself have four jobs, and one of the nost
i nportant ones is being a student, and we don't get
paid to do that.

Students |ike nyself are constantly
financially-chall enged, living fromcheck to check
and hoping that our tuition is covered, and that we
can conti nue our education.

The Excel sior Schol arship should match the
di sparity, by percentage, to the increase in
tuition.

Bei ng that the annual incone requirenment is
set by the State, that should reflect as a residency
cost for students, and bridging that divide is
i nperative to ensure that students who need the help
get it.

W are in need for adequate funding for al
of our institutions because funds are constantly
bei ng noved to things that don't necessarily benefit
us as students.

Fi nanci al burdens tend to overwhel m students
i ke nyself, and we need the additional support.

Thank you for your tinme and support, and
| would like to introduce Georgia Hubert [sic].

GEORG A HULBERT: Hell o.

s this working?
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Ckay.

Hi .

First and forenost, | want to say thank you
for comng to the University at Buffal o here today
and, obviously, listening to us as we represent the
st udent s.

First and forenost, ny name is
Ceorgia Hulbert. 1'ma senior at the University of
Buf fal o, studying political science and | egal
st udi es.

And this year | have the honor, wth Yousouf,
to represent the 21,000 undergraduate students here
at the University at Buffalo.

And | can tell you it's a very uni que
experience, where we get to neet and talk to
hundreds of students, and listen to their concerns
and the issues that they face on a day-to-day basis
as students.

And one of the things | think -- actually,
two key issues that we notice, and as we speak to
students, and the first one is that, right now,
students are still be -- students are still facing
many financial issues.

W have students who are concerned every

senmest er whether or not they are eligible for
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financial aid, and have to deal with that anxiety
as -- while being full-tine students.

W al so have students who are working two to
three part-tinme jobs, just to be able to afford, you
know, their tine as students at the University at
Buf f al o.

Students are constantly concerned and anxi ous
about whether or not they can truly pursue their
degrees, and have the financial ability to be able
to do that upon graduati on.

Al of these things conbined, that is a --
that can be -- take a toll on nany students.

And so while we need the financial-aid
progranms, and an expansi on on those prograns,
desperately, we also need the support -- the
financi al support for the prograns that help
students see those four years through.

Like | said earlier, as we are students who
get to neet with many, they cone to us with various
degree -- varying issues.

As we know, nental-health issues are on the
rise, and the support services, unfortunately, have
not been able to expand due to, you know, financi al
concerns on behalf of the University at Buffalo.

And while (indiscernible) asked, as
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under gr aduat e student governnent, so, you know, what
can we do? unfortunately, we can't do a lot. And
we' re using student fees to do what we can to find
alternative solutions.

But, ultimtely, these types of progranms need
to expand in order to help students conplete their
four-year degrees.

O her situations in which w've faced and
we've noticed, is that students are -- there's many
food and financial insecurities in that regard. So
we had to start our own food pantry.

And, nostly, the funds com ng out of that
were fromthe undergraduate student association, and
not the University at Buffalo.

We -- and to denonstrate the scale of this
issue, is that we are currently supplying over
30 bags of food a day to students, and to be able to
support themthrough their tine at UB

Al so, as the nunber of students with
di sabilities increases throughout New York State,
accessibility resources, what we call our office at
University at Buffalo, disability services offices
across the state, are not being supported
adequatel y.

There has been a drastic increase in the
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nunber of students attending colleges. And as nore
students identify as having nental -health issues,
unfortunately, the funding for that -- for the
disability services offices has renai ned stagnhant.

So that is also a concern on nany of our
students, not only receiving equal access to their
education as our abl e-bodi ed peers, but also, on top
of that, being able to -- for those offices being
able to provide the extra services in order to nake
t hose students feel included and supported
t hroughout their tine at the University at Buffalo.

And, of course, outreach progranms, we get the
opportunity to nmeet and work with nmany students who
have been inpacted by those prograns.

And while we know that for -- or, like,
hi gher education is 100 percent needed, really, in
today's age, for sone people, that is really like a
lifeline.

And it's essential that we can expand on
t hose prograns to, you know, allow all students the
opportunity to seek a hi gher-education degree.

So these are the types of prograns.

So while we would | ove for, you know, the
expansion on financial-aid prograns, there are

also -- while that nunber -- or, while the nunber of
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students increases, we also need to expand upon the
progranms that hel p students conpl ete those degrees.

So | just want to say thank you for |istening
to us today, and thank you for being here.

SENATOR STAVI SKY:  Thank you.

I ncidentally, Austin was at the New Paltz
heari ng.

|"mproud to say | work very closely with
the -- both the student association of --
SASU [ ph.], whatever, the student governnents, both
at SUNY and CUNY.

Questions?

"1l tell you what, should we let the
Assenbl ywoman go first?

ASSEMBLYMEMBER McMAHON:  Sur e.

SENATCR STAVI SKY:  Yeah, |et her.

ASSEMBLYMEMBER McMAHON:  Well, first of all,
| just want to thank all three of you for being here
today, and | want to conmend you for all you do.

It's hard enough just to be a student and to
get through those four years.

But, you're working, and you're so active in
student governnent, and taking on roles that a | ot
of people have no interest in.

Sol really -- I"'mso inpressed, and | really
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think you're going to do great things in the future.

So, congratul ations, and thank you for being
here today.

| would Iike to touch a little bit nore
about, Georgia, you nmentioned the food security, and
ot her hidden costs of -- of attending higher -- a
hi gher - education institution, not just food, but,
you know, the cost of books, the cost of
transportation.

You know, if -- if you could --

GEORG A HULBERT: O cour se.

| know that, you know, we ran for student
government, all three of us. And between all of us,
| nmean, we nust put in 20 to 30 ours a week in what
we do for our universities.

Wth that said, we do get paid in our
respective roles, but we still work part-tine jobs
on the side, and we're full-tine students.

Like, I work two part-tine jobs.

|"msure | can speak for the others too.

And that's just something that we go through
as students because the cost of living is expensive.

A lot of students, you know, also have to
worry about health insurance and heal th care.

That's al so a big concern, which is why we
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need to expand on nedical progranms at the univer --
you know, at our universities so that they can
afford these types of services, because health -- as
we know, health insurance and health care is not --

i s not cheap.

Al so, yes, transportation costs, you know,
and things along those |ines, cost noney.

Living at universities, or whether we have to
support our famlies too, that's always -- al so
anot her concern.

So while tuition is expensive, and tuition
costs are funded, we al so need those other services,
to be able to get us through those four years, and
So we're not constantly worrying about, you know,

t he next paycheck, or whether we can afford our
bills, and such, but we can actually concentrate on
our degrees, and making sure that, you know, we're
taki ng up opportunities to be able to, you know, be
conpetitive, you know -- be conpetitive once we
graduat e col | ege.

YOUSOUF AMOLEGBE: And just to kind of --
just to kind of touch on the nen -- the food pantry
alittle bit nore, we are (indiscernible) -- so
(indiscernible) piloted | ast spring by the

previ ous -- previous student governnent, executive
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board, with -- in collaboration with university
heal t h pronoti ons.

Al t hough the student governnent, let's say,
had to sponsor a great anmount of it through, Iike,
nonet ary sponsors, food drives, to kind of get food
for students, to be able to stock the pantry, we --
| do -- university mission also did help donate
towards it.

But we know that, like -- we -- we would hope
that, like, there would be like a fixed funding for
the -- for the pantry for the future.

As we understand that, like, we were told
that university tuition fees couldn't be used to
feed other students. But, like, we feel that, like,
food security is a very big issue on canpus.

Not every student can afford to have a nea
pl an (i ndiscernible), and because SUNY can't afford
to buy a nmeal every single tine.

We are spending so nmuch tine in school and,
i ke, studying, that not every student has tinme to
sit at home and, |ike, buy groceries and cook, or,
some may not know how to cook at all

So it's really inportant that, |ike, food
security is like -- is really, like, paid attention

to.
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We can find like a way of, like, to making,
like, the food pantry being stocked, like a
per manent thing, because (indiscernible) like, the
same way tuition and fees, not necessarily shouldn't
be -- isn't allowed to cover other students
(i ndi scernible), student activities fees shoul dn't
be -- shouldn't -- shouldn't also have to go through
as that, because the student activities fees should

be providing services to all students, and not just

certain students that can -- can -- that can't eat.
Al so, as for transportation, | know for --
for the -- for the longest time, student governnents

at UB had to, like -- we had a safety shuttle that
student governnents at UB were funding, to take
students that |ived right by on the South Canpus
within a 1.5-mle radius.

And (indiscernible) -- ever since the change
of our fiscal agents, (indiscernible) used to
operate the services, the university park and
transportation has taken on that role. And student
governments don't pay for the safety shuttle
anynor e.

But -- and -- but we would -- | would hope
that, |ike, because there will be a way that nore

funding can could go towards. This way, we can
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expand, like, the distance on which to we take
students to, because students -- housing close to
canpus al ways tends to be on the nore expensive
side. And students find thenmselves going a little
further off canmpus, away from canpus, to kind of,
i ke get the much cheaper housi ng.

But this comes into, like, to the cost of
bei ng able to have -- have -- have -- have to be
able to buy a car.

O, if you don't have a car, be able to --
the public transportation in Buffalo doesn't really
serve, like, enough routes. So, like, it's kind of
really tough to, like, use public transportation to

get to canpus.

O, like, even if you had a car, Iike,
mai ntaining a car, like, putting gas in there, |ike,
the regular wear and tear of cars, like, this is

stuff that are very expensive.

And we woul d hope that, |ike, we can kind of,
i ke, expand the reach of, |ike, transportation for
students in like a nore broader scale, rather than
just 1.5 mles within South Canpus.

But actually, like, be able to cover, like,
students that |ive off of North Canpus or

Sout h Canpus and a wider m |l e radius.
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ASSEMBLYMEMBER McMAHON: (I naudi ble) from --
we all would benefit frominproved public
transportation (indiscernible), certainly.

Just one last thing.

Am | correct in assumng that there are no
requi renents to buy a neal plan, or are there?

If you -- if you're living on canpus, for
i nstance, are freshmen required to buy a neal plan?

| know at some schools --

GAELLE JEAN- BAPTI SE: For Buffalo State
Coll ege, | believe, for freshnen, you do -- you do
have to get one because you are living on canpus.

So for the first two years you |live on
canmpus, and you have a neal plan. But when you do
live off-canpus, you have the option of not having a
nmeal plan, which does takes off nmoney, which | know
fromm experience with other students, that they
don't get the neal plan in order to pay their rent
for off-canpus.

So it's either you eat or you live in a
house.

So, | know for Buffalo State Coll ege
students, there has been an issue of, |ike, campus
safety, and stuff |ike that.

So when you live off-canmpus, you al so have
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the issue of, how am| going to get honme at night
after an 8:40 cl ass?

O, howam! -- just to touch on the issue of
transportation, also, if the shuttle buses don't go
as far -- farther than the 1.5 radius, then how am
| going to get hone safely?

And then, if | can't afford an Uber or Lyft,
or | can't stay sonmewhere else, then there's an
i ssue that | mght get robbed, or sonething |ike
t hat .

And | think that's a really big issue within
Buf fal o al so.

In regards to the nmeal plans, | think -- we
do have commuter neal plans, but they're extrenely
expensive also. And, on top of them being
expensive, for one neal, it's $10 for that.

| can go sonmewhere else to get a different
nmeal .

So I think, when it does cones to the nea
pl ans, and different things like that, we -- we do
need to work nore with our students and nmake sure
that they're affordable.

So. ..

ASSEMBLYMEMBER McMAHON:  Thank you.

YOUSOUF AMOLEGBE: At UB -- at UB, students
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on canpus al so have to have a neal -- that live on

canpus have to have a neal plan in their freshman

year.
SENATCR KENNEDY: Well, | said it earlier --
first of all, thank you all.
| said it earlier, and I'll repeat it: The

nost inmportant testinony we're going to hear today
is fromthe students.

And we really appreciate your | eadership,
each and every one of you, not just here today, and
being so brave to cone and testify on behalf of your
fellow students, to the tune of thousands of fellow
students, but your |eadership throughout the year.

And the -- the -- the -- the role that each
and every one of you has taken on is a major
| eadership role.

And so we certainly appreciate your activism
and your engagenent with the student body.

You know, Georgia, you had nmentioned
something, and -- and | -- and | just want to go
back to it, you know, your -- your -- your
conversation about getting students engaged.

And, you know, how you ultimtely got
engaged, and the three of you, | think, is very

i mportant.
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You said you're a political-science mgjor.

The first thing that cones to ny mind is that
the three of you need to be signed up for our
greater conmunity.

And it's great to see young people really
playing a role in the future and the vision for the
Uni versity at Buffalo.

So, again, congratulations.

But as far as you're concerned, Ceorgia, you
know, how do we do that; how do we get nore people
engaged at this |evel?

And what can we do as electeds to -- to make
t hat happen?

GECRA A HULBERT: | think one of the ways in
which -- you know, a lot of tinmes, students would
i ke the opportunity to get involved, and join
clubs, and be in the | eadership roles, and do
research, and all of that stuff.

But, unfortunately, nost of the time, |ike,
the things that are hol ding students back is that
they don't have the time, because they're having to

wor k several jobs to be able to support thensel ves.

| know that, like, this year, for nme to be
able to, you know, get -- to take on this type of
role, I had to nove -- | had to nove back hone and,
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you know, live a little bit back in with my parents.
So, lucky them
But | think, you know, that is kind of one of
t he bi ggest issues facing students, is just the
financi al concerns.
And the ways that we engage students nore,
you know, on canpuses in the political process, al
of that type of thing, is by alleviating the anxiety

of , you know, how am| going to be able to afford

t his?

YOUSOUF AMOLEGBE: To ki nd of piggyback on
what she said, | know that us, as student governnent
| eaders at UB, we have, |ike, one of the |argest

student activity-fee budgets anbng the SUNY -- anong
SUNY school s.

So, like, our stipends are fairly higher than
nost ot her SUNY school s, but, even for us, we still
find ourselves struggling financially to |ive on
what we get paid.

So | always think to nyself, that if we are
tech -- kind of, like, struggling to keep -- live --
live on the wages that we earn as student government
| eaders, what about the other -- other SUNY schools
that earn way much | ess -- are nmuch | ess than us, or

the ones that doesn't get paid at all, |like, how are
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t hey keeping up (indiscernible)?

Like, I'mvery sure, we mght -- we -- we --
| would say that we have -- we don't have enough
student invol venmrent within -- enough invol venment

wi th student governnent.

Li ke, for exanple, our student governnent
el ection have about, like, a 1 to 2 percent voter
rate in the elections. And it's, like, of the
20, 000 students, only about 2,000 -- 2,000 cone out
to vote. You're not serving the majority; it's not
the majority vote you in. But it's just, like, who

cares enough.

And it's inportant that, like, | think one of
the -- one of the things that really draws back
student invol verent in student government is -- is,
i ke, they have -- students have to think about, al
right, yeah, | care about it. | nean, | want to be
involved, | want to nake a change. But, if ny

parents are not paying ny tuition, if ny parents are
not giving ne nonthly all owance to stay in school
| have to find another way to fund ne being able to
stay in school, and making it kind of, like,
feasible for me to stay in school

So if you -- (indiscernible) -- you cone --

you join a student governnment, it's not going to be
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to, like, keep up -- keep up with your, like --
your, |ike, daily needs, and, |ike, kind of, Iike,
keep you on the, like, a financial and stable

posi tion.

You're going to look to other -- to other --
to other -- to other neans -- neans of -- neans of
earning any noney, in which is going to take away
your involvenment in student governnent.

And, like, | know this is one of the things
t hat our previous student governnent, the previous
e-board did, was actually raised the -- raised the
hourlies for our student staff, to $15 an hour,
because we wanted to make it conp -- conp -- nake
our student government positions conpetitive with
other -- with, like, other jobs around, so that no
student says, that | would rather go work at
McDonal d's than conme work -- come work with
(i ndi scernible) and actually nake an inpact and make
a difference for the students on canpus.

SENATOR STAVI SKY:  Thank you.

Let ne just mention one other aspect.

You nentioned -- | think it was Georgia who
menti oned the nental -health facilities.

Back in February, Senator Kennedy, and, in

fact, the entire Denocratic Conference, sent a
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letter.

And the | ast sentence says, "W are proud to
stand with the SUNY Student Assenbly and the
Assenbl y. "

W made a request for restoration of -- it's
a tel econferencing system

| think it was $600, 000, where students from
upstate help folks with nmental -health needs.

And | believe that was restored to the
budget .

So we are aware of this.

And | think we can -- we're using student
resources, which | think is hel pful.

GECRA A HULBERT: And so, as of right now,
that is definitely a resource that is available to

students. And, you know, that's definitely, you

know, like, a wonderful safety buffer, if you want
to call it that.
However, |'msure that, you know, many people

know t hat, you know, the best interaction and the
best help is a one -- you know, one-on-one with a
prof essi onal nental -health, you know, a
pr of essi onal .

And right now, our students at the University

at Buffalo are having to wait three weeks for an
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appointnment. And they cannot afford to go to --
through with the private route.

So that is still a concern on our end,
regardl ess of the, you know -- the tel -- | can't
remenber the nane of it.

SENATOR STAVI SKY: The letter says that, as a
result of the program they were able to expand to
ei ght canpuses to provi de enhanced services for the
st udents.

So | think that's, you know, sonething that
we are | ooking at.

Senat or Kennedy has. ..

SENATOR KENNEDY: Yes, on that sane point,
just before | cane to this public hearing today,
| was co-host of another public hearing, actually,
on the opioid epidemc. And we had the opioid task
force, and our coll eagues fromacross the state that
came together, dealing with that.

And t he nunber-one issue that canme up, was
maki ng sure that the nental -health capacity is --
is -- is a focus of the decisions that we're making
out of Al bany.

And to hear you discuss the issues on canpus
here, the fact that we have to properly fund, we

have to give the proper resources, for nmental -health
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i ssues, so that students can hit their highest
potential, so that they can deal with their own
personal issues that they may have, so that they can
be the student that they want to be and hit their

hi ghest potential, | think is absolutely inportant,
and essential, to exactly what it is, why we're
doi ng this today.

So, to hear you say that and speak of it, and
the need for nore of a focus on this canpus, and it
speaks to the entire system is vital.

So, thank you.

CEORG A HULBERT: M. Senator, one nore
thing would | like to add as wel|.

And while, you know, counseling definitely
pl ays into, you know, supporting students with
nment al - health i ssues, a whol e ot her aspect of that,
and what has been on the rise, and what has been a
concern of disability services offices, is nore
nment al heal th nowadays is being considered a
di sability, and, you know, a severe barrier to
students being able to receive their education.

And with that, there needs to be, also, a
consi deration and an expansi on on the funding
towards disability services offices so that they can

al so support students to getting equal access in the
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cl assroom

And a lot of tines, you know, students are
struggling to be able to get the adequate
accommodations to be able to succeed.

SENATOR STAVI SKY: W done?

Ckay. Thank you all for com ng.

We have Andy Sako, president, Faculty
Federation of Erie Community College, to be foll owed
by our friends from UUP

ANDREW SAKO:  Good aft ernoon.

Chai rwonman St avi sky, Assenbl ywonan McMahon,
and Senator Kennedy, thank you for this opportunity
to speak today.

| am Andrew Sako, president of the Faculty
Federation of Erie Community College, and |'m
representing SUNY Conmunity Col | ege today, as well
as ny |local.

NYSUT represents nore than 80,000 acadenic
and professional individuals in higher education.

Thank you again for this opportunity to talk
about the cost of public higher education, student
borrowi ng, and other challenges to the affordability
and accessibility.

| know you've heard earlier fromny coll eague

Roberta Elins fromthe Fashion Institute of
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Technology. And I'd like to reiterate sone of the
t hi ngs that Roberta had sai d.

At this tinme | would like to discuss
community col |l eges and the inpact of State funding,
or lack thereof, has had on the affordability and
accessibility; nore specifically, Erie Community
Coll ege and its students we serve.

Community col |l eges educate all types of
students. They have -- they hel p them advance,
social nobility, and are | ocated where they I|ive.

Many tinmes, our students, it's their first
chance, and sonetines their |ast chance, to becone
successful .

They often coll aborate -- our conmunity
col |l eges often coll aborate with busi nesses and
enpl oyers to devel op and provide training activities
t hat address our | ocal workforce needs.

W are, basically, the engine for Erie County
in providing highly-trained graduates to this
comunity.

State education |aw stipulates that the State
will pay 40 percent of operating costs at comrunity
col | eges; however, to date, the State has not been
nmeeting its obligation.

In order for our canpuses to maintain and
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enhance academ ¢ programm ng and student support,
their funding needs to be increased and stabilized.

Even though enrol |l ment at sone canpuses has
decreased, operational costs have risen.

Reduction in conmmunity college enrollnment are
related to our econony.

You' ve heard that earlier frommnmy president.

When we're doing -- when the community is
doing well, traditionally, comunity coll eges have a
drop in enroll nent.

Qur canpus rely on State funding to offer
progranms and student services that not only respond
to the current and future business needs, but also
to attract potential students.

In the absence of predictabl e funding,
canpuses are forced to raise tuition, or limt
courses or programnms, which dimnish their appeal to
future students.

The ' 19-'20 state budget that was enacted
provi ded community colleges with the greater of
$100 per FTE or an established fl oor of 98 percent
f undi ng.

We appreciate what the Legislature was abl e
to do there, and we -- we -- as NYSUT supported that

| anguage.




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N NN N NN P R PR R R R R R R
gag A W N P O © 0o N oo 0o M W N+ O

96

Wil e the enacted budget had the funding
floor, unfortunately, it did not insulate community
coll eges fromthe enroll ment declines.

According to the data that was submitted to
SUNY fromErie Community Col |l ege, they were supposed
to receive 1.5 percent nore in State operating aid;
1.5 mllion.

And in the '19-'20 year, while we are
grateful for the additional funding, it is not
sufficient to allow community colleges to plan and
mai ntai n prograns and services to attract and retain
st udents.

NYSUT conti nues to advocate for the adoption
of a hybrid FTE nodel nmethodol ogy, as proposed by
SUNY, for their conmunity coll eges.

During budget negotiations this year, SUNY
and NYSUT reached an agreenment on the statutory
| anguage to codify the hybrid methodol ogy.

The | anguage and proposed hybri d met hodol ogy
woul d provide comunity coll eges with greater |evel
of support, using 3-year average rather than a
1-year or FTE dollar anount for the coll ege.

Thi s met hodol ogy change coul d have provi ded
our community college with sone | evel of security,

and allowed themto have a strategic plan for the
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future, as well as provide with additional financial
support.

At Erie Community Coll ege, nearly 50 percent
of our cost -- of the burden is shoul dered by
students, with about 30 percent provided by the
State, and, roughly, about 20 percent fromthe
county governnent, our |ocal sponsor.

Wt hout appropriate funding, comrmunity
col | eges are endangering student affordability and
access to public higher education, as well as the
gquality of the education that they receive.

Therefore, a significant investnment is needed
to reverse this trend, and preserve and enhance the
gqual ity of education to our students.

Additionally, | just wanted to bring up a
coupl e of other points.

Over the past 30-plus years |'ve had a career
at Erie Community Coll ege, there has been m ni mal
investrment in our facilities or infrastructure.

Some m ght even say it's been years of negl ect.

We desperately need additional funds and
infrastructure and facilities renovation over the
next few years.

There was a bill |ast year, 2622, which would

have hel ped with the inprovenents, and woul d be
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quite helpful if we were able to get a |esser
anount, a 25 percent |ocal share, in order to do
some of these inprovenents, and the 40 percent for
the new bills.

So | wanted to just throw that out there.

The state-of-the-art facilities will attract
nore students.

It will inprove ny nenbers' ability to
provi de the highest-quality education.

ECC is an asset, it's a jewel; it should be
funded as such

And, again, | wanted to thank you for the
opportunity to speak to you today.

Thank you.

SENATOR STAVI SKY:  You nentioned the hybrid
nodel with FIT.

You refer -- FIT has a unique problem and
that's the charge -- the potential chargeback issue.

Does that apply to you; is that what you were
referring to?

ANDREW SAKO.  No, | was --

SENATOR STAVI SKY:  kay.

ANDREW SAKO  -- | was -- no.

SENATOR STAVI SKY: Al right.

Do you have any questions?
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SENATOR KENNEDY: Yeabh.

The -- to that extent, the chargeback node
is in place?

ANDREW SAKO Oh, | don't have to push it?

Ckay.

| thought | was at the County, |'msorry.

You got to hold it down all the tine.

The chargebacks are an issue for us with
students mgrating over to NCCC, for exanple, or
students coming fromJCC to our institution

SENATCR KENNEDY: But aside fromthat -- and
that was just for clarification -- you know, | --
| -- and | nentioned this to President Hocoy
earlier, you know, that | have heard sonme concerning
things regarding the capital investnent, or |ack
t hereof, at ECC

And maybe you can el aborate a little bit.

And the president did tal k about the need for
that capital investnent.

And as |'msure you heard, we urged himto
expedite that naster plan, so that we can have
the -- the -- the -- really, the vision of the
community col |l ege and the funding necessary to
realize that vision

Can you just speak about, on a very personal
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| evel, and the things that you' re seeing, areas
where that capital investnment is necessary, and,
really, the inpact that it will have froma
budget ary perspective for ECC?

ANDREW SAKG:  Yes, | coul d.

| also teach in that area, so |'mvery
famliar with the construction needs of the
bui | di ngs.

So, if you take a | ook at our North Canpus,

our North Canpus really has -- and | was a student
there many years ago -- sone of the |abs and wall s,
and so forth, are still the sane color. They've not

been updated since | was a student. Now, that's
over 30 years -- 30-some-odd years ago.
| had a career before this.
And if you take a |l ook at, you know,
our City Canpus, there was a | ot of deferred
mai nt enance on that building up until recently.
W were very fortunate to get the STEM
buil ding out at North, which is a great asset.
In the "90s we were able to get the
Burt Flickinger Center; however, we weren't able to
get $1.2 mllion to maintain the facility.
You know, we, basically, were just given the

building without -- without any ability to maintain
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t he buil di ng.

You know, they just replaced all the heat
punps, for exanple, at Gty Canpus.

You know, if they would have mai ntai ned them
t hey probably coul d have | asted another five or
six years. They weren't able to hire enough
personnel to take care of those things.

I f you look at our grounds... it's on and on
and on.

It's just unfortunate that, because of the
| ack of funding, or |ack of planning, one or the
other, that we're not getting what we need.

SENATOR KENNEDY: So, in your estimation,
it's -- this has been years in the making. This is
really deferred mai ntenance that has becone nmj or
capital --

ANDREW SAKO.  Yes.

SENATOR KENNEDY: -- necessities, just --
just to keep the lights on, it sounds I|ike.

ANDREW SAKO  Yeah, right now, basically,
it's a Band-Aid.

And |'ve been advocating, and |'ve spoken
wi th you and others, about, you know, over the
next five years they really need to invest in

Erie Community Coll ege.
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They need to invest in community coll eges
st at ewi de.

But we're in a critical place.

Peopl e are | ooking at our facilities, they're
| ooki ng -- and, should we go there?

You know, if it's antiquated, they're not
going to go there, and that affects ny nenbers.

But we al so have sonme of the finest faculty
around this area, and students are choosing to go
el sewhere, which is costing our taxpayers additional
funds if they go to NTRIP [ph.] or down to
CGenesee Community or other schools, which I have
not hi ng agai nst any of those schools, by the way.

It's just that I1'd just like to see
Erie County residents stay in Erie County.

SENATCOR KENNEDY: O cour se.

Thank you.

ANDREW SAKCO:  Ckay.

ASSEMBLYMEMBER McMAHON:  Hi, Andy.

ANDREW SAKO  Hi

ASSEMBLYMEMBER McMAHON:  Thank you for com ng
i n today.

ANDREW SAKO  Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMEMBER McMAHON:  You had nenti oned

that 50 percent of the cost of the operation of ECC
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i s shoul dered by the students.

And |'m just wondering, does that include --
is that just -- is it tuition? is it financial aid?

Li ke, where does financial aid fit in that
picture into those percentages?

ANDREW SAKO.  Mpst of our students are
eligible for financial aid.

ASSEMBLYMEMBER McMAHON:  But | was wonderi ng.

ANDREW SAKO: The ones that aren't are
wor ki ng two and three jobs, as you've heard, at the
university level as well.

But it's -- it's getting close to 50 percent,
is what |'msaying, and it does not neet the
statutory requirenment of the State is what | was
getting at.

ASSEMBLYMEMBER McMAHON:  One-t hird,
one-third, one-third?

ANDREW SAKC:  Ri ght.

ASSEMBLYMEMBER McMAHON:  Wel |, that --
that -- that student contribution, that includes
noney that they would pay, and --

ANDREW SAKO. It --

ASSEMBLYMEMBER McMAHON: -- that which is
covered by financial aid?

ANDREW SAKO  -- well, basically, all that
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that covers is tuition, because there's additional
costs, which are kind of a dirty little secret in
community col |l eges, and el sewhere, where you have
| ab fees, you have all these other fees, that are
i ncl uded.

You al so have textbooks. You have ot her
itens.

| nmean, there's a list probably a page and a
half long in our college catal og, which is online.

ASSEMBLYMEMBER McMAHON:  (Okay. Thanks.

SENATOR KENNEDY: And if you could speak to
the intellectual -property issue?

ANDREW SAKO.  Sur e.

SENATOR KENNEDY: You know, | -- | brought
that up to the president before. He didn't seemto
be know edgeabl e on that as an issue.

Maybe because it's a new issue with the new
t echnol ogi cal advancenents.

But this is something that |'ve heard is a
concern, at ECC in particular, that the -- the --
the direct -- direction to which this nmay have an
i mpact on the educators there --

ANDREW SAKO.  Yes.

SENATOR KENNEDY: -- and not getting paid --

potentially, not getting paid for a class that they,
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or, in their likeness, would preside over.

ANDREW SAKO: Wl |, our concern is, the
provost -- the new provost at the college --

And | was surprised to hear that Dr. Hocoy
did not know about this.

-- but the provost, who was from SUNY Canton
started di scussing things about what they woul d cal

"flex courses,"” where you could cone in and go to
your class, or you could look at it at another tine,
whi ch, at community coll eges, is sonewhat of a

probl em especially when we're training people to go
into the workforce

| can understand online courses, distance
| earni ng, we have | anguage to protect those.

But this flex-course idea, where you can just
kind of watch things in your janm es when you feel
like it, is sonewhat problenatic.

Al so, once ny inage is out there, nmy -- ny --
my -- nmy craft is out there, | have no control over
it. And that's one of ny concerns.

So that's sonething that we're very concerned
about, and, you know, we're going to continue
tal ki ng about that.

But | was a little taken back when he had no

i dea what you were tal king about.
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SENATOR KENNEDY: So -- so you'd say,
arguably, so, that that is proprietary information,
and proprietary likeness if it's a video?

And we're seeing this in other areas of
soci ety.

And t hat being said, the educators should --
the idea is, that if this is information that's
going to be used, that those educators should be
rightfully conpensated for it?

ANDREW SAKO Wl |, it's conpensation or
control

| nmean, you're bringing your intellectual
property out there. And when students pay for a
course, okay, now, if that -- if they take a picture
and decide to rebroadcast something that you've
done, and next thing you know, they don't need you.

And that's really the bottomline with this
si tuation.

So, | have sone concerns about, also, you
know, just the idea of people being able to take a
course whenever they feel like it, because, in
certain fields, nursing, you know, some of your
t echnol ogi es, your engineering areas, you have to be
there, you have to absorb the naterial.

And, yes, online courses are fine, but this
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is a new nodel, it's kind of a bizarre nodel, that's
come up recently.

And, obviously, we would be discussing, and
| ooking at the SUNY intellectual -property rights,
and so on, with this.

So we're in conversation with the provost
about it, but, you know, again, it is an issue.

SENATOR KENNEDY: Is this sonmething that you
feel will need legislative attention, or we're not
that far yet?

ANDREW SAKO: | don't think we're that far
yet, but it is sonething that is problenatic.

SENATOR KENNEDY: Ckay.

Thank you.

ANDREW SAKO  Okay. Thank you.

SENATOR STAVI SKY: Thank you very much

ANDREW SAKO  Thank you very rmuch.

Thank you again for having ne.

And we have our friends from UUP

We have Dr. Frederick Kowal, the president
of UUP

W have Joe Petrick fromAl fred,

Philip dick fromthe Health Science Center;

Fred Floss fromBuff State, whom|'ve known

for a nunber of years.
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FREDERI CK E. KOMAL: We're going to break up

SENATOR STAVI SKY: (Ckay, it's your call.

Let nme just read the names -- oh, why don't
you take care of it.

W have UUP from Fredoni a, and ot her
canpuses.

But | just would Iike you to understand that
| have to |l eave at 4:00. Jet Blue is not going to
wait for ne.

FREDERI CK E. KOWMAL: No.

And we don't want you to mss your flight.

DR PHLIP GICK W'Ill take you to the
airport personally. [It's an easy airport.

SENATOR KENNEDY: Do you have a rocket ship?

JCE PETRICK: Well, first and forenost,
Senat or Stavi sky, we want o thank you for hol ding
t hese hearings across the state.

SENATOR STAVI SKY:  Which you have attended,
faithfully.

FREDERI CK E. KOWAL: Yes, and we w ||
continue to do so. They are very inportant to this
union and to our nenbers.

| would also like to thank Senator Kennedy
and Assenbl ynenber McMahon for your steadfast

support of SUNY and the nmenbers of our union.
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| will be brief, so that there is time for ny
col | eagues to give you the details of the situation
at their respective canpuses.

As you have heard from ot her testinony, the
situation facing SUNY is severe in terns of funding.

Because of 10 years of flat budgets, there is
going to be, inevitably, inmpacts on canpuses.

Furthernore, | think that there is an inpact
on the entire system that what you begin to see is
a fracturing in the system as canpuses suffer.

Some canpuses are doi ng okay.

We heard about UB

They have sone -- they have certain
advant ages, econom es of scale, that snaller
canpuses, especially those in the rural areas, |ike
Al fred, and you'll hear from Joe Petrick concerning
Alfred and its situation, and Fredoni a.

And, again, it is -- these are unique
ci rcumst ances.

We believe strongly in maintaining the
integrity of the system fromthe hospitals, to the
tech canmpuses, and all of those canpuses in between.

As you know, what the |ack of funding has |ed
to -- well, there's many results.

One is the increasing adjunctification of the
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faculty. Mre and nore courses taught by part-tine
faculty as a way for canpuses to econom ze.

That | eads to an exploitation of these
faculty, but, also, a situation where tuition is
rising and students don't have the benefit of
full-time faculty.

The other situation that |I'm sure coll eagues
will address is the uni que denographic pattern
that' s devel opi ng.

Over 57 percent of the students in SUNY cone
fromthe five boroughs of New York City,

Nassau County, and Suffol k County.

That is a challenge for these canpuses in
Western New York, to attract, but then, especially,
to retain, those students.

It's why we favor expansion of the
Educati onal Qpportunity Program which is so
successful at recruiting and retaining and
graduating students fromthe city, but, in general,
from underresourced areas.

The other area that | do want to touch on,
that I cover in nore detail in nmy witten testinony,
because it is very relevant out here at the
University of Buffalo, is the legislation we

continue to push for, regarding transparency at the
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canmpus foundati ons.

W are on the canpus with the | argest
f oundati on.

And need | rem nd you that the foundations
were created to serve the acadeni c m ssion of the
canpuses.

Qur legislation, which I'm pleased that you
are sponsoring in the Senate, if approved --

OFF- CAMERA SPEAKER: (I naudi bl e.)

FREDERI CK E. KOWAL: Yes.

-- which approved, would conpel CUNY and SUNY
canmpus foundations, and their subsidiaries, to
submit annual reports, and to post them on the SUNY
website. Those reports would include financi al
information, contract vendor data, and a |ist of
f oundati on and SUNY enpl oyees, including salaries,
job titles, and descriptions.

We are hopeful that the legislation will nove
in this session, at the very |east, so the
foundations serve the academic mssion at a tine
when resources are scarce.

Agai n, thank you for the tinme that you have
taken for this hearing, and all the hearings.

And | ook forward to answering any questions

you nmay have.
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| will yield ny time nowto another Fred,
Dr. Floss, fromBuff State

FRED FLCSS: Thank you.

Thank you, Senator, for all of the service
you' ve done, and everything el se, over the years.

You have been a beacon for all of us as we
get out there.

Before | start, | just want to nention, if we
can have ny three students from EOP who cane today,
just to stand up so that you can see them

And Jocel yn Tej ada who's here too.

Wo -- these are the students that we keep on
tal king about. And they canme here just to hear
what' s goi ng on.

So | wanted to nmake sure that you saw them
and that we recogni zed them

|"mnot going to do ny testinony.

| do want to respond to a couple of things
t hat have been tal ked about today.

First, rational tuition is neither rational
nor stable.

The second thing about that, is that what
we' ve seen, while well-intentioned, | believe, is
that, as canmpuses have had to fund their educati onal

m ssion, they've taken noney out of prograns, |ike
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room and board, and ot hers.

And, in effect, what we've done is, is we've

nmoved things that were TAP-able and Pell-able to now

be student | oans.

So if you want to tal k about why we have a
student -1 oan program we can do that.

| have an analysis. | can share it with you
at another tine.

But it is a pretty dire thing that we're
doi ng because, you've heard fromall of our
students, 96 percent of the students at
Buffalo State are working nore than 32 hours a week,
none of themw th benefits, because they're doing
nore than one part-time job, so that when they can
no longer afford to be there, after they' ve taken a
year, or two years, and you've heard that the
retention rate at UBis only 56 percent, which is
shocking for the richest econom c group in SUNY,
that they then have to pay that all back without a
degr ee.

That's the fundanmental problemthat we have
because of what we've done.

The second part of that is, we talk about it
as a TAP gap, but let nme explain.

96 percent of Buffalo State students are on
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full TAP and Pel .

What does that nean to Buffalo State?

That means that we have not seen any tuition
dollars for any of the students that we have,
because we can't charge them any.

But on the other end, you've raised tuition.

So those people who could have paid tuition
and conme to Buff State are now goi ng el sewhere
because it's too expensive to go to Buffalo State.

Those are the students you hear that are
goi ng to Pennsylvania, that are going to Chio, that
are going to New Jersey.

As we | ook at this, an analysis | did for
Buffalo State, using standard econom c¢ nodels, for
every $100 in tuition that you increase, we |ose
57 students because they can no |onger afford to be
her e.

That nmeans, while Buffalo State was a few
years ago at 10,000 students, we're now | ooki ng at
| osing al nost 3,000 students. Over 2500 of those
students are attributed al nost directly because of
i ncome problens of themnot being able to afford to
conme to a SUNY canpus.

Lastly, one of the things that you've talked

about is food security.
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| want to tell you want we're doing at
Buffalo State.

The faculty and staff is raising fundraisers.

And in ny business -- in ny building al one,
we have a food pantry.

"1l just give you one exanple of what
happened.

| had a student.

W were doing an event, and we had granol a
bars, you know, out there, just to -- to be
friendly -- right? -- and to talk, and a couple of
t hi ngs of water.

A student was hiding sort of in the corner.
W didn't know who he was.

And | wal ked over and said, Wll, what's
wWrong?

And he said, "Well, could |I have a granol a
bar ?"

| said, "Here, take three."

And he said, "You don't understand.
| haven't eaten in 24 hours."

Thi nk about that.

"I haven't eaten in 24 hours," yet |I'mtrying
to come to class. | really don't have a place to

st ay.
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And, what are we doi ng?

This is where SUNY really is the engi ne of
grow h and i s econom c devel opnent.

"1l leave you with one | ast thought about
t hi s.

As | was just talking to one of our |argest
enpl oyers, Moog -- okay? -- and they said to ne,
"Econom ¢ devel opnent is your students."”

|"mneeting with them next week, to try to
wor k on maeking sure that they have | ocal students
t hat graduate from SUNY because, what do we know?

We know t hat 90 percent of our students in
SUNY, and 90 percent of our students in CUNY, by the
way, stay in New York and raise taxes.

That's an extra $149,000 in state incone
taxes alone, if you want to think about it.

You' re causing your next debt crisis in
New York State because you're not funding SUNY, and
you're not looking at it as a capital project, the
operations part about it, not the building, that
we're providing you with the students.

And what did Mboog say?

W want to hire |ocal students because
they're the ones that stay, they' re the ones that

have local famly here, they're the best workers.
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You need to cone and hel p us.

And that's we're trying to do at SUNY.

And, thank you for your tine.

JUDE JAYATI LLEKE: Good afternoon.

My name is Jude Jayatilleke. 1'mone of the
ECP counsel ors at Buffalo State Coll ege.

Thank you for the opportunity to speak to you
t hi s afternoon.

Again, | have given you a witten statenent,
so I'"'mgoing to sunmari ze some points, key points,
about coll ege, accessibility, and affordability.

As | mentioned before, | work for the EOP
Program which is a very successful program
however, nmany of our students are facing chall enges.

Many of our students aren't able to pay their
bills.

If they're unable to pay their bill, they
cannot register for classes for the follow ng
senest er .

Buffalo State has been quite generous to
saying to our students, If you are able to bring
your bill to under 500, then you can register for
t he next senester.

But the case is not the sane for many of our

st udent s.
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So we |ose a lot of students who aren't able
to pay their bills, so this affects our retention.

We spoke about the TAP gap.

That has been a huge problemto nany of our
canpuses.

Many of our students -- EOCP students are
t hose who are highly active on our canpus. They are
very busy students.

The three students we brought here today are
part of the honors program They work rultiple
j obs, so they give back to our conmunity.

| wanted to | eave you with a story about one
of our students.

He came to us from The Bronx. And after his
first senester, his parents couldn't afford coll ege
for him

He had an open bill and he couldn't return to
t he second senester.

So, as a part of the -- he was a part of our
| earning community. And we were able to work with
t he col |l ege honors program and EOP program and
bring himto the EOP program

So he was able to graduate | ast year with a
3.92 grade-poi nt average.

He mai ntai ned a 4-point average throughout
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his academ c career. W rked nultiple jobs to pay
for college. And he is doing very well now.

So that was one fortunate student we were
able to save.

There are nmany students we cannot save.

We get over 6,000 applicants for ECP at
Buffalo State, and we can bring only 250 students.

So, |I'm hoping today you woul d support
Buffalo State, support SUNY, efforts to keep our
students here and nmake sure they graduate.

And | also want to introduce ny coll eague
Jocel yn Tej ada.

| f she gets an opportunity to speak, she had
sonme really good points that she would like to share
with you as well.

SENATOR STAVI SKY: Thank you.

DR PHLIP GLICK: CGood afternoon.

My name is Phil dick. | ama UB M
pedi atric surgeon.

| " m chapter president for the health sciences
chapter.

And | was the forner chair of the faculty
senat e.

So | speak to you with rmuch understandi ng of,

both, the academi c side, as well as the enpl oynent
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si de, of UB.

At our fall DA | ast week, Senate Majority
Leader Andrea Cousins said to us, "Education is the
great equalizer."

And we vociferously agree with her.

She went on to say, that, "The Enpire State
has a pul se."

We're grateful for that.

She then said, that, "SUNY is on life
support.”

And that's not very good.

|'ma doctor, | understand what that neans.

So we're here today to hel p you understand
how to hel p fund SUNY properly.

|"mhere in the spirit of shared governance
to ask Senator Stavisky and her colleagues in the
New York State Hi gher Education Committee to help
resuscitate SUNY.

And in this matter, 1'd like to speak to you
about three matters at UB

|"d like here -- 1'd first like to say to
you, that, please help the chancellor, SUNY
adm ni stration, and both sides of the Legislature to
bring in a good budget.

Qur budget has been flat for the |ast
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Si X years.

During that time you' ve heard about the TAP
gaps rising.

It's a $70 mllion gap this year.

The Excel sior gap is rising.

The mai ntenance-of-effort contracts have not
been funded properly.

And there's a variety of unfunded mandat es
t hat have not been funded properly.

UB is currently using our reserves.

O her canpuses are using their reserves.

Sone canpuses have no reserves and are
actual ly borrowi ng noney from SUNY.

This is terrible.

W really need an adequate budget this year.

Secondly, I'mhere to ask your Conmttee to
support the passage, and obtain the Governor's
signature, on Senate Bill 06275, and that's the
Canmpus Foundation Transparency Bill.

This is very inportant, not only for UB, but
for all the canpuses, because they hel p make the gap
smal l er so we can function and neet our educati onal
m ssi on.

And, lastly, M. -- Senator Kennedy, I'd |ike

to answer your question directly about the
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Jacob School of Medicine.

The Jacob School of Medicine had its
groundbreak in 2013. W noved in 2017.

What |'m here today to ask you is, for
construction-bond forgiveness that's costing us
$1 mllion a nonth/$12 mllion a year, for the next
28 years.

This is severely inpairing our strategic plan
down at the nedical center.

And as Dr. Del Genio said, the nedical center
i s the backbone of health care in Wstern New York

W' re bei ng hamnstrung.

Not to go into too much detail about the SUNY
budget, you're all very famliar with that, but it's
very inportant that we do not take a flat budget
agai n.

Wen the budget remains flat, we put the
operating costs of our universities on the backs of
the students' tuition and their fees, or we cut
progr ans.

And that's what has been going on around here
for the last four or five years.

And, renmenber, the flat budgets were on top
of a severe cut after the 2008 recession, so we're

not even back to where we are at baseli ne.
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So, please, try to fund this budget
adequately, it's very inperative.

Wth regard to SUNY transparency, |'mhere in
the spirit of shared governance, and one of the
essential features of shared governance is
t ransparency.

Currently, the SUNY canpus foundations hide
behind a | egal curtain.

Let's use UBF as an exanpl e.

UBF is a private 501(3)(c). [It's not subject
to any of the public institutional reporting and
transparency that SUNY is or the conptroller is, or
UB specifically is.

W think it's very inportant that this bill
be passed, but not only passed, get signed.

You know, we know -- we're | ooking for your
| eader shi p, Senator Stavisky, because we know this
bill is never gotten out of the Higher Ed Conmittee
on the Senate side before.

W really think it's inportant.

But it needs to get signed al so.

And there are inportant forces fighting
against it, including the UB Foundati on.

What are they afraid of ?

Just as you should know, two weeks ago, the
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conptroller cited the UB Foundation for $900, 000 in

financial "questions."

And the transparency bill would fix those
t hi ngs.

And, last, let ne address the question that
you asked Dr. Del CGenio, and I'Il answer it
directly.

In 2013, the CGovernor, in the Western
New York conmunity, stuck a spade in the ground for
our nedi cal school .

They did it in a very unconventional manner.

It was the first tinme, that |I'm aware of,
|"ve been at SUNY for 32 years, that a building was
actually funded without all the noney in the bank,
wi t hout 10 years of maintenance in the bank, and
with all the furnishings in the bank.

45 percent of the construction costs were
paid for by the State or SUNY capital budgets.

The ot her 55 percent was financed with
bond -- bonding that the nedical school has
guar ant eed.

We are paying $1 nmillion a nonth to the
bondi ng agency; $12 million a year. And this is on
t he backs of the faculty for the next 28 years.

| magi ne what that's going to do?
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W' ve asked in the past to have forgiveness
for this.

W need it. It's, just we're desperate.

If we really want Buffal o-Ni agara Medi cal
Center to grow and the nedical school to grow, and
t he people of Western New York to be healthy, we --
we need -- we need this |oan forgiveness so we can
use that $12 million a year for other prograns.

Right nowit's just going to the bank.

I n concl usi on:

| ask Chai rwoman Stavi sky and her col | eagues
to pl ease be certain, this year, that the
New York State H gher Education Commttee gives your
col | eague a hi gher -- the higher-education
| eadership to make hi gher-education needs of your
constituents, our citizens, the best possible health
care and education they deserve.

New York State deserves to be the best in the
world, and right now we're failing at that.

Thank you very much

SENATOR STAVI SKY:  Thank you.

Let ne respond quickly to some of the points.

There are -- really, we're tal king, not just
t he canpus foundations, but also the research

foundation, that -- so let's be -- now, they were
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subject to FOL, oh, I would say, nmaybe seven or
ei ght years ago, by a reporter fromthe
"Ti mes Union."

And | think it was Hearst that owns the
"Ti mes Union."

They took that very seriously.

They went to court, and they won their case.

So they are subject to FOL.

Secondly, we have discussed this issue, but
it was a little late in the session, if ny nmenory is
correct, if not after session. So we never really
had the opportunity.

The conptroller has -- the State conptroller
has done a lot of audits, very critical of the
research foundation. He's been very good on this.

But, in fairness, they' ve gotten better.

| think after they lost their case and were
subject to FOL (the Freedom of Information Law),

t hey have gotten a | ot better than what they were.

Nowher e near where they ought to be, but
| think they have to -- it has to be recogni zed t hat
it's gotten a lot better.

And as far as the bonding goes, that, | have
nmet with representatives of, not of the hospitals

affiliated with the academ-- the nedical -- the
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four nedical schools.

Qobvi ously, Buffalo doesn't have one.

They al so have a very serious -- the
hospital s have a very serious debt issue. The --
and they' ve asked us to absorb -- to have the State
absorb the debt as well.

| tried, during the budget negotiations, to
have that included in the capital budget, because it
seens to nme that debt is a function of the capital
or lack of a capital, program

| was not successful .

But we are aware.

And the Senate, and Assenbly |I'm sure, but
| know the Senate Denocratic Conference understands
this issue, and we're going to continue.

DR PH LIP GICK: Thank you.

SENATOR STAVI SKY:  Yes.

DR PHLIP GICK Can | just nmention one
t hi ng about the UBF.

When | was chair of the faculty senate, the
UBF i s, obviously, very inportant in naking our
budget whol e.

| had several conversations with the chair of
t he UB Foundation, and we tal ked about transparency.

And what he told ne was, that the UBF is
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sufficiently transparent. Thank you very mnuch.

Hung up the phone, and refused to nmeet with
nme agai n.

This arrogance is just wong.

This is public noney.

This is -- they are not a private entity.

SENATOR STAVI SKY: (I ndi scernible.)

DR. PH LIP GICK: They really are essenti al
to public education in Western New York

SENATOR STAVI SKY: | have been extrenely
critical of the foundations.

And, in fact, 10 years ago, when | chaired
the Commttee very briefly, ny first question at the
budget hearing is: Wy are they charging tickets to
t he Moscow Circus to the research foundation?

And it sort of went downhill fromthat point
on.

[ Laught er. ]

SENATCR STAVI SKY: So | understand what
you're saying, but, it's gotten better.

FREDERI CK E. KOWAL: kay, if our coll eagues
fromA fred State could --

SENATOR KENNEDY: Unh --

SENATOR STAVI SKY: |'m sorry.

SENATOR KENNEDY: -- | wanted to ask a couple
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of questions, if | could.

FREDERI CK E. KOML: -- okay.

"' m sorry.

SENATOR KENNEDY: Dr. Gick, you're not
getting off that easy.

DR PHLIP GLICK [I'msorry.

| didn't want the Senator to miss her flight.

SENATOR KENNEDY: | couldn't -- | suppose |'m
| ess concerned about that.

My apol ogi es, Senator.

"1l buy you a beer and a beef-on-w ck and a
coupl e of wi ngs.

SENATCR STAVI SKY: | saw the Anchor Bar when
(1 naudi bl e) .

SENATOR KENNEDY: You certainly did.

"1l be very brief.

First of all, I want to thank each and every
one of you for your extraordinary | eadership.

| nmean that fromthe bottomof ny heart.

| nean, you're on the front lines. You're
constantly comunicating with us.

You' re trenendous representatives across this
entire state, especially as it pertains to our
flagship schools here in Buffalo; the University of

Buf fal o, Buff State.
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Just, it's a pleasure to work with all of
you.

Dr. dick, you wore the right col ors today,
you often do. You are UB through and through.

Just a couple of issues | wanted to just
t ouch on.

And maybe, Fred, you can speak to this
briefly, about your energy initiatives that you're
wor ki ng on.

W have -- and we didn't touch on it today,
U we' ve been working closely, sort of behind the
scenes.

But you' ve been doing this on your own, UUP
in formulating a new vision for the future.

| think it's inmportant to get on record where
you' re headed.

Clearly not done yet, in draft form a |ot of
work still needs to go into this.

But | think it's inportant for fol ks to know,
really, the innovative efforts that you and t he UUP
have been maki ng on behalf of the SUNY system and
the state, and the partnerships that you've created.

W'l start with that.

FREDERI CK E. KOWAL: Yeah, first thank you

very much
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It has been a priority for UUP, really, going
back to 2015, when we first proposed funding of
about $15 million to go towards the devel opnent of
baccal aureat e prograns throughout the SUNY system
geared to the devel opnent of new technol ogi es and
work within those technol ogy areas.

The Governor enbraced the program found
ot her funding sources for that. And it's a grant
program now, into effect for its second year.

What we are proposing this year is, actually,
for that programto be expanded, in fact, doubl ed,
so that there can be nore devel opnment of such
progr ans.

We are al so, as you know, we've been worKking
closely with, you know, a firmout here in
Western New York, the G een Machi ne Corporation,
with the idea of devel oping a pilot program at
si x canmpuses in the SUNY system that would be
geared to utilizing the |latest battery technol ogy,
so that there can be energy efficiencies that
canpuses can take advantage of, to control costs,
and then, also, aneliorate the problenms caused by
CQ2 producti on.

We are al so working on plans that woul d

expand greatly what SUNY does in terns of its energy
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conservation

SUNY needs to be the lead institution in
New York State, because of, literally, the brain
power, the capital, that is within SUNY, the
students and the research that is done.

But then, also, sinply by the fact that
40 percent of the state buildings are in SUNY.

And so as SUNY noves, we hope, very
aggressively to being carbon-neutral, they take on,
you know, radical ideas, like, perhaps, a
cap-and-trade system anong canpuses, to get to that
point, basically, to lead the way, to show, you
know, New York State, the nation, and the world,
that this is howit can be done when you have
institutional conmmtnent.

And that's we're | ooking for.

And we're | ooking forward to working with
SUNY closely on this, as well as with the private
sect or.

It will benefit students, it will benefit our
comunities, and, obviously, it will benefit the
world in the |long run.

SENATOR KENNEDY: The | eadership of you,
Fred, and UUP, and your entire team has just been

sensat i onal
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So thank you for all your efforts.

And | know we're up agai nst the clock here.

But, again, Fred, Jude, Dr. dick, and
Fred, thank you all.

FREDERI CK E. KOMAL: Thank you

"1l call up our other spokespersons now,
fromAlfred State and from Fredoni a.

And | want (inaudible) --

SENATCR STAVI SKY: | have been to both.

FREDERI CK E. KOMAL: -- and I'Il let them
i ntroduce thensel ves so that they can get right to
their statenents.

My nanme is Joe Petrick. I'ma librarian from
Al fred State Col |l ege.

As you know, the College of Technol ogy -- the
col | eges-of -t echnol ogy sector in SUNY has particul ar
probl enms, where neither colleges of arts and
sci ences, nor are we conmunity coll eges, although,
the community coll eges of technol ogy often serve, as
we do in Alfred, as a de facto community college in
t he area.

So we have both associ ate and bachelor's
degr ees.

We are engaged in workforce devel opnent.

We have |iberal-arts prograns, but we al so
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have a nunber of applied-technol ogy prograns.

We have an applied-technol ogy campus in
Wl lsville, New York

We are currently working with Erie Conmunity
College in the north -- Northland Wrkforce
Devel opnent Center. So we have a presence in
Buffalo as wel | .

A lot of those prograns are very expensive.

| f you have, for exanple, sonography,
radi ol ogy, as we do, radiologic technol ogy, or
wel di ng, or machi ne-tool technol ogy, those prograns
are very expensive, conparatively nore expensive,
than |liberal-arts prograns.

And as a consequence, we've had to rely on
donati ons of equipnent, or, in some cases, we rely
on purchasi ng surplus equi pnent, for our prograns.

So | think it's inportant that we have sone
relief in ternms of an aggressive tuition-assistance
i ncrease.

I n concl usi on:

I'"d like to say, as a librarian, | think it's
inmportant -- and this was not in ny witten
testinmony -- but | think it's inportant that the
libraries receive sone increase in funding, because

what happens is, when a college canmpus runs into
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probl enms or financial (indiscernible), often, it's
the libraries that are the first to be cut.

|"ma graduate of the University of Buffalo.
| went to the -- | got my doctorate at Buffalo.

And | think it's inportant, not only for the
research centers or the colleges of arts and
sci ences, but also for the coll eges of technol ogy,
that we have an increase in |library service.

And this could all be assisted by an increase
in TAP fundi ng.

Thank you.

ROBYN HORN:  Hell o, thank you so nuch for
havi ng us.

My name is Robyn Horn. 1'm a second-year
Ph.D. student at UB in theater and performance
studies. |I'ma presidential fellow 1'ma proud
uni on nenber.

And | just wanted to conme share a little bit
about, sort of, ny perspective, why | chose to nake
my future here in Western New YorKk.

The very first tinme that | came to Buffal o,
| was from New Jersey and New York City, | turned to
nmy now husband and said, Wiy aren't we living here?
This is great.

And the truth is, when he graduated from
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Princeton 20 years ago, there weren't -- he was
| ooking for a job in Buffalo public schools, and
they were laying off teachers, not hiring them

But 20 years has made this incredible
difference, and Buffalo is nowreally thriving.

It's a city that | |ove.

And | feel |like so many of the exciting
things that | see happening in this community, from
X-ray crystall ography, to outdoor Shakespeare, are
connected in some way to these SUNY school s.

Wien | was | ooking for a Ph.D. program
UB was ny only choice.

| have had really incredible professors who
have encouraged ne to publish, to present at
nati onal conferences.

| actually am in, like, 13 hours, |'m going
to be on a plane to Texas, to do research for a
chapter that | just had accepted for publication in
a book. And that is -- that research travel is
funded by UB.

And | could not do it wi thout that funding.

It's scary to pick up your life sort of
m d-career, quit your job, nake your husband quit
his job, and start a new life.

We just got a cost-of-living increase,
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Ph.D. students, and it has nmade a trenmendous
difference in anxi ety reduction.

My incredible colleagues at UB represent this
i ncredi ble diversity of experience.

They are doing work in representations of
gender and | ndian dance, in robotics and Al and
per f or mance.

They come fromincredible backgrounds.

They're playwights. Some have been on
Broadway. They've been part of international dance
conpani es. And they have brought this experience
and this passion to Buffalo.

And one of the amazing things that |I've found
at UB, that |I didn't see in other places |'ve lived,
is that, when people cone here, they really want to
stay here. They want to give back to this
comunity.

So, again, | just want to thank you for
investing in these schools, and, in turn, investing

in this community.

Thank you.
SENATOR STAVI SKY: | guess you like it.
ROBYN HORN: | do, very nuch

SENATOR KENNEDY: Wl cone.
ROBYN HORN:  Thank you.
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SENATOR KENNEDY: We |i ke having you here.

ROBYN HORN:  Thank you.

SANDRA LEWS: Hello. M nane is
Sandra Lewis, and I'm from Fredonia. Recently
retired from33 years of service at the canpus.

So you have ny testinony.

And | believe ny last line is: 1In order to
hel p students, we need to have a real solution to
t he TAP gap.

|"d like to share with you a story that one
of our students had for the TAP gap.

This young | ady was born and raised in a
nei ghboring town, Dunkirk. Has a little bit nore
di verse peopl e of color, Hi spanics and
African- Ameri cans.

She was a (inaudible) African-Anerican young
| ady.

Throughout her entire tenure there, we'd have
her on canpus, conme to the theatrical perfornmances,
and things like that.

And so she was really connected to our
canpus.

And so it wasn't a surprise that she wanted
to go to SUNY Fredoni a.

She applied, she was accepted, and she was in
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an EDP program

It's EOP in sone places. EDP at Fredonia.

So she was as a freshman. She was |iving on
canmpus. She was becom ng accustoned to the
di fferent people, and things like this.

And, she still did not have enough noney.

You know, being an EDP student, they did give
her some funding, but she just didn't -- couldn't
have enough fi nances.

So she had to go and get a job, as |ots of
students do have to do.

She had a part-time job, even though it was
nore than 20 hours a week, but it was still a
part-tinme job.

And unbeknownst to a group of us who worked
at the canmpus, she decided to cone up with her own
solution to close this gap.

| believe it's Hilbert or Conesus --

One of the private universities on Route 20.
| can't recall the nane.

-- she appli ed.

She went and tal ked to the dean of students,
and, of course, the dean was inpressed, as we were.

This was an awesone young wonman who | oved

| earni ng, |oved getting invol ved.
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And so they kind of closed that gap for her.
They gave her noney to go to their canpus.

And we were sort of disheartened, because we
really wanted her to graduate fromone of -- from
the best, the best, public university in the nation.

So | just wanted to share that story with
you.

| thank you for your tine.

SENATOR STAVI SKY:  Thank you.

| was at a hearing at Fredonia a nunber of
years ago, and | was very inpressed with everybody.

ROBERT ROGERS: Thank you.

|"'m Bob Rogers. |I'mat Fredonia. |I'ma
prof essor of nmathematics.

And first up, | want to thank both Senators
and Assenbl ywonan for having this, and having us to
talk with you.

| " m ki nd of the change-up pitch on this one.

Everybody' s been tal ki ng about fundi ng.

| don't want to tal k about funding.

| actually want to talk about flexibility.

| think it's very inportant to have
transparency, especially with the foundation
accounts, to make sure that that noney is going

towards students and things that really matter,
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i nstead of other kind of slush funds that people
use.

That being said, |I'mkind of concerned that
there is a possibility that, if there is too nuch
transparency -- and that sounds a little silly --
but if there's too nmuch transparency, that, if
accounts start getting hanstrung.

And canpuses -- with the funding paradi gm
shift, canmpuses have been forced to be nore creative
in how they fund things.

And | just have a couple exanples to kind of
illustrate this.

In the witten -- witten testinony that |
have, | talk about two coll eagues of mne and I, we
created a graduate course for our nmaster's in
mat hemat i cs- educati on students.

And it's a sumer cl ass.

And in this class, they actually are -- they
devel op materials. And they are counselors for a
m ddl e school STEM canp.

And it serves the community because m ddle
school students can conme and be in it.

Qur graduate students, they really sort of --
they really win fromthis because they get an

experience that they're just not going to get
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anywhere el se.

And the university makes out on this because
they're getting tuition noney, that they're paying
for this.

And ny col |l eagues and |, we decided, instead
of taking a salary, we would have that noney
deposited into a suture account.

And the reason was, it was noney that we
could use to fund things |ike undergraduate student
travel to conferences.

We take 30 students every year to the
Associ ati on of Mathematics Teachers in
New York State Conference, and they present.

So we kind of scrounge around to get noney
for it here and there. There's not a big pot of
nmoney for that.

And this account that we had was supposed to
fill the gaps.

Well, as we found out, a suture account, and
|"msure you're well aware, suture account does not
pay for student travel

It wll pay for ny travel, ny coll eagues
travel, but it will not pay for student travel.

So we deci ded, eventually, that we had to put

this noney into a foundation account.
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That -- that it was great to have the suture
account because, it would be before taxes, it got in
there. You know, it really was a nice way to do it,
but just was not flexible enough.

So we ended up taking a salary, but now we
donate it into our -- into a foundation account, and
then that can cover things that the other stuff
cannot .

So, really, | do urge you to have the
transparency in there. Foundation accounts have to
be transparent, but | think they also have to be
fl exi bl e enough to deal with this.

And while | was sitting there, one other
thing kind of came up, to kind of illustrate the
i dea about flexibility.

(I'ndiscernible) -- this will be really brief.

Qur departnent has a nunber of foundation
accounts that donors have given us endowrents. And
we give sonme nodest schol arships to sonme of our
students. | nean, they're |ike $500 schol arshi ps.

In the past it's been fine. W just wite
them a check and they get it.

Thi s past spring, our chairperson said that,
Well, we have to be careful about this because, if

t hey get schol arship noney through this, then
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they're going to | ose noney through the Excel sior
program or TAP, or whatever, because that's going to
be skimed right off for tuition.
And that's, like, they're getting screwed.
| nmean, there's no other way to put it.
So we have to actually go and try and find
t he donors to say, okay, this noney is going to not
go for tuition
It's really kind of hamstrung us, and it's
really hurting students.
So | guess I'll end with that.
| like transparency, but there has to be
enough flexibility in there that we can help the
st udents.
Thank you very much
SENATOR STAVI SKY: Ckay, we're good?
SENATOR KENNEDY: Thank you all.
SENATOR STAVI SKY: Thank you all.
For the record, it's 4:00, and the hearing is
adj our ned.
(Wher eupon, the public hearing held before
the New York State Senate Standing Comrittee on
Hi gher Education concluded at 4:00 p.m, and

adj our ned.)




